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ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).. Okay, everybody settle down. Cut the noise out. This is an
official meeting of the Council’s Committee on Budget and Finance. We are here this
evening to hear from residents Upcountry on the proposed 2017 Budget as prepared
by Mayor Arakawa. So this evening, before we start, I would ask that you all give each
other the courtesy of turning off or put on silent anything that makes noise that’s
your phone, that’s your iPad, iPods. There’s many of you that would like to give
testimony tonight so everyone has their same opportunity this is the rules of this
Committee. Everyone has three minutes, and three minutes only, to give testimony.
We will assist you with your time once you start speaking our staff will start the timer.
At the two minutes 45 second mark, she will start 2:45. That means you have
approximately 15 seconds to complete your thoughts to the Council Committee and
that is equivalent to about two sentences. Okay. So get prepared people because we
know you want to share your thoughts with us. Come to the microphone, state your
name, if you represent a group Boys and Girls Club, Best Buddies, whatever it may
be please state that organization you wish to support and then give us your
comments. One of the things that we do is, of course, we let our youths testi1i first,
then our seniors, and then the general community. This evening we are going to ask
your member from Upcountry, Ms. Balsa, to introduce the Members of the Budget
Committee.
.

.

.

.

-

-

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chalr Hokama, and aloha to all of you
and thank you very much for joining us tonight. We’re really, really happy to see the
room full. I’m very happy because you help me work for you. First of all, I’d like to
introduce to you the Chair of the Budget Committee, and that is, Mr. Riki Hokama.
He is from Lanai.

AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause)...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And the Vice-Chair of this Committee is Mike White and he
represents Makawao-Haiku-Paia, and is that it, Mike?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Haiku-Paia-Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, we got it all. Okay. And I’m going to start at the other
end so I don’t get mixed up. Okay. We have Bob Carroll from the East Maui.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And next to Bob we have Stacy Crivello from Molokai.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And all of you know Mike Victorino from Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, everyone.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And we have Don Couch from South Maui.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Elle Cochran from West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Don Guzman from Kahului.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And next to Don is our Staff. We have Sharon Brooks and we
have Clarita Balala. And over there at the check-in table, we have Troy Hashimoto
helping out.
AUDIENCE:
(applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And I believe we have other staff in the room today. We have my
staff from my office that’s in the refreshment area. We have Amanda Martin and
Darlene Ane.
.

.

..

.

.

AUDIENCE:

(applause)...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And they’re being assisted by Mrs. Victorino, who is the virtual
volunteer. She’s always helping everywhere she goes. And my husband Sherman
Balsa.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
much, Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA:

.

.

I think that takes care of our introductions.

Thank you very

(inaudible)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. The Chair is giving me a job. I get to call up the testifiers.
We’ve got a whole bunch of testifiers. Portuguese don’t need microphones. What I’d
like you to do is I’m going to announce who is going to testify and the person who
follows, if you follow and you’re in the back of the room, would you please come and
sit up here so that we can save time in getting you to the microphone? The faster we
get through this, the sooner all of us can go home but we want to make sure that we
hear everybody. Okay. Our first testifier is Novalee Patel followed by Abby Clayton.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Please, go right ahead.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MS. PATEL: Hello. I’m Novalee Patel speaking from Kekaulike Chapter of Best Buddies and
this is my buddy, Abby Clayton. Thank you for letting me speak about Best Buddies
and the impact it has had on me. for those of you who don’t know what Best Buddies
is, it’s an organization where people with intellectual or developmental disabilities
(inaudible).
friendships. I joined Best Buddies at King Kekaulike High School in
2014. I’m currently an officer and I will be taking on the role of Chapter President
next year. Since becoming involved in Best Buddies I’ve learned crucial leadership
development skills that I can carry with me through my life. I have learned about
putting on events, getting to know different personalities, and giving people
opportunities that they wouldn’t be able to have anywhere else. We have created
inspiring moments for people who might not have those opportunities to like go to a
dance or hang out with friends. Because of Best Buddies I have been able to have a
major impact on my buddy’s life. Our friendship has done a lot for both of us. We
enjoy going to the beach, seeing shows, and we even got to see each other perform in
our school’s plays. I saw her perform in Diary of a Wallflower and then she came to
see my beginning acting show case, and it just meant the world to me to have
someone from Best Buddies come support me. I also made other friends from Best
Buddies like Vanessa who one time I forgot we had a vocabulary test and then she
reminded me in the morning right before class and she had made flash cards with all
of the words on it. We ended up like spending the morning studying together. It was
so fun. So, through Best Buddies, we were able to create new friendships and build a
.

.
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greater understanding of inclusion in our school. I urge you to support Best Buddies
Hawaii so that more students and citizens of Maui can benefit from Best Buddies
Programs. Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none; thank you.
Our next testifier is Abby Clayton and Abby will be followed by Maya Aoki.
MS. CLAYTON: Hi. I’m Abby Clayton. Best Buddies is fun. I enjoyed all the fun things I
had that Best Buddies has done for me.
and I’m proud of myself and all my friends.
And as I set on my journey, I want you all to know that Best Buddies will always be
there for you no matter what you’re heading towards. I hope you guys have fun and
thank you for your time.
.

AUDIENCE:

...

.

(applause).,.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Next testifier
followed by Jeremie Amano.

-

Maya Aoki and she’ll be

MS. AOKI: Good evening, Councilmembers. My name is Maya Aoki and I am a senior at
King Kekaulike High School. Maui Economic Development Board or MEDB for short
has given me enumerable opportunities which have shaped who I am today. My
freshman year I was quite timid and shy, and I never really had a strong sense of who
I was. However, when I joined my STEMworks class, STEM stands for Science,
Technology, Engineering and Math, I was able to find a calling towards public
speaking and sharing my journey through STEM. MEDB gave me an opportunity for
an internship this past summer called Excite Camp and I got to for a week long go to
different islands and get young girls excited about joining STEM. Later in my life, I
traveled to the Big Island, Oahu, and Molokai, and it was actually my first time on the
Big Island and Molokai. I lived on Maui for my entire life and I’ve never been to
Molokth before but it was a wonderful experience and I got to connect with lots of
women, much younger than me, who shared the same passion for science. So, please
greatly consider MEDB when planning for the future of Maui’s STEM’s students.
Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Reeves.

Thank you very much.

Jeremie Amano followed by Michael

MR. AMANO: Good evening, everyone. My name is Jeremie Amano and I am a senior at King
Kekaulike High School.
I’m here to testify in support of the Maui Economic
Development Board or MEDB. So I’m a $TEMworks student. I’ve been taking the
STEMworks curriculum for the past four years at Kekaulike, and from the start I was
always a shy kid, you know, I wouldn’t be able to talk in front of you guys like this. I
-6-
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would be really quiet so you guys wouldn’t be able to hear me. But thanks to
STEMworks it’s really been a professional development for me. Over the summers,
STEMworks has provided for me to take internships so that way I was able to learn
how to use software such as computer programming or geo-spatial information
systems to apply that skill in real life jobs so I could have that opportunity before I
reach adulthood. So through that I was able to get computer and technical skills
through that STEMworks internship. But other than that, the really important thing
about STEMworks is that it provides you professional development. It really helps you
to grow up to be an adult so that’s really important too. You really want to be able to
just go out and be able to socialize with everyone. Don’t want to be quiet. So that’s
what STEMworks have allowed me to become. So I really hope you guys continue to
support MEDB and STEMworks and thank you for listening. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Members, any questions?
Michael Reeves and he’ll be followed by Sheldon Ranks,

Seeing none. We have

MR. REEVES: Hello, everyone. My name is Michael Reeves and I am here in support of
MEDB. So I’ve been a member of the STEMworks program for just about four years
now, and I’d love to stand before you and say that I spent the entire time with my nose
to the grind stone working as hard as I can. Not the case at all. I actually joined a
class under the impression that it would be an easy “A”. I could just glide by and do
nothing and the second year I did the exact same thing. May as well as lump in the
third year with that. Well, it wasn’t until I heard Ms. Young speak at last year’s STEM
Conference that I realized all the opportunities that STEMworks actually provided.
And I wanted to go out and try and pursue those myself. So I learned a program with
the help of my STEM teacher, Ms. Raynes, and through that Jeremie and I were
actually able to go out into our community and offer multiple programming classes to
elementary schools around the island
at Pukalani School, lao School, and Wailuku,
along with a few others. So I just share the story of incompetence with you all to say
that, to drive home a point that if I could attain such a sense of accomplishment, I’m
even going into computer sciences in the future. If I could attain all of that in a single
year, I’d like to think what STEMworks and MEDB could do for a student who is
focused for all four years. Thank you all.
--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Sheldon Ranks. By the way, Members, if
you would like to ask a question, please just stop me otherwise, I’ll just go on. Thank
you. Sheldon Ranks and Sheldon will be followed by Maya Ito.
MR. RANKS: Hi, I’m Sheldon Ranks and I’m in the 5th grade at Pukalani Elementary School.
I am here in support of the Maui Economic Development Board and Women in
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Technology. At Pukalani School we have many opportunities to engage in STEM
Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math. The entire student body in Grade K to 5
attended STEM classes throughout the year. They engage in the engineering design
process while learning about science concepts through creating projects like solar
ovens, windmills, hand pollinators, water filter systems, aquaponic systems, electric
circuits, just to name a few. All students also attend art classes to integrate science.
In addition, students in Grade 2 through 5 have the opportunity to attend STEM
camps and robotics camps. Students in Grades 3 through 5 can try out for the
science olympia and the math teams. This year’s students in Grades K and 1 will
have their own robotics class using B-Bots. These are B robots with arrow buttons on
top. Kindergarteners and first graders will learn and be exposed to the first steps in
computer programming and coding and using these 3-Bots. Doesn’t it sound fun?
The Maui Economic Development Board has donated $15,000 over the last three years
to help Pukalani Elementary School build their STEM program to what it is now. Last
year, I was on the robotics team and attended the robotics camp over the summer.
The classes, the STEM programs at Pukalani have expired me to be an engineer. I
plan to go to a good college and study to become an engineer who wants to build
robots that helps people. The Maui Economic Development Board should continue to
be funded because their grants help change children’s lives and allow them to dream
big. Thank you.
-

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier will be Maya Ito and she’ll be
followed by Kathleen Phillips, And I would like to invite all of you to please partake of
the refreshments. They’re being put on by Team Balsa and help yourself. Go ahead.
MS. ITO: My name is Maya Ito and I am a 5th grader at Pukalani Elementary School. I am
here in support of the Maui Economic Development Board and Women in Technology.
The Maui Economic Development Board has given the Pukalani School Robotics Team
grants for the last three years. We have used this money to buy new parts for the
robots and partially fund our travel to the State competitions in Oahu. They were also
the first organization to donate to our fundraiser for our trip to the world
championships next week. My participation in the robotics team has gotten me more
interested in pursuing a career as an engineer. Now I plan on taking more science
and math classes when I get older to prepare me for my college classes. The Maui
Economic Development Board and Women in Technology should continue to be
funded because the grants have helped reach our goals of competing with teams from
all over the world and have inspired my dream of becoming an engineer. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier is Kathleen Phillips and Kathleen
will be followed by Keven McCloud Matilano.
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MS. PHILLIPS: Good evening. My name is Kathleen Phillips. I’m a resident of Pukalani.
And I’d like to thank you for coming out tonight to listen to us. I’d like to also thank
you for the MEO bus transportation. My daughter is 46 years old and had a massive
stroke and lives at Hale Makua, and through MEO we were able to bring her home at
least once a week on Saturdays and during the holidays and it gives her a little time at
home. So please continue to take care of MEO.
I’d also like to talk to you about sidewalks. We appreciate the sidewalks that were put
in from King Kekaulike High School down Upper Old Haleakala Highway, They look
great; however, sidewalks are also needed in several other areas. We request the
following: continuation of sidewalks along Old Haleakala Highway from Loha Street to
Pukalani Street; a safe walkway for our students and community is imperative. We
are in dire need of sidewalks along the lower portion of Old Haleakala Highway, a
continuation of the existing sidewalk along Kua Ama Ridge on the lower portion is a
possibility. However, there is a problem with crossing the highway. Presently, it is
very dangerous for the people trying to walk to the shopping center or school daily.
During inclement weather it becomes treacherous. The motorists can hardly see the
individuals on the narrow sides, It’s difficult to watch our youth walking up that road
with gushing waters rolling into their path and causing them to be drenched before
they even get to school. At night, the road is hazardous because it’s narrow, winding
and very dark. A planned new development of 170 new single family units that will be
placed at the lower portion will increase this dangerous situation. A continuation of
sidewalks is needed from Pukalani Terrace Shopping Center along our Pukalani Street
to Liholani Street with stop sign near the golf course entrance.
Revise bus routes. That’s my baby. The existing route in Pukalani continues to have
one bus stop at Pukalani Street. This one and only bus stop location creates a
potentially dangerous situation even with the additional street crossing lights at the
bus stop. People waiting for buses often sit on that fence that has a big drop at the
bottom. Would appreciate the bus stop location and route to be discussed with the
Pukalani Association Bus Committee, which I’m on.
A reversal route between
Pukalani and Makawao is crucial.
MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. PHILLIPS: Our students and residents who visit the library should not have to be taken
to Kahului to get home. We do appreciate the SSM recommendation for a revised
route plan to include that reversal route.
MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. PHILLIPS: We would like to see a future expansion route when needed along with the
location of current and future bus stops. Hannibal Tavares Community Center,
Pukalani Park they need cleaning, ongoing cleaning to the pool facilities, picnic tables,
Pukalani Park and Department for the timing lights.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You’re going to have to conclude your comments, please.
MS. PHILLIPS: Okay. I did make a presentation. I submitted my presentation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MS. PHILLIPS: Please note that on that presentation about MEO I mistakenly forgot to add
that on. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay, Kathy, we got it. Members, any.

AUDIENCE:

...

.

.

nothing, okay.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Keven McCloud Matillano and will be
followed by Matt Wanderscheid. You can correct me when you get up here.
MR. MATILLANO: Hi, my name is Keven. I was with Ka Lima since March 31st, 2015. I
worked grounds like one year. My job is make it part neat and clean because I don’t
want to destroy the park so much. My job is cutting the grass, even rake those leaves.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. MATILLANO: Sorry about that. My...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Take a deep breath and then go right ahead. Don’t worry.
MR. MATILLANO: Every day I cut grass everywhere at the park
Kamalii, Wailuku El,
Hawaiian Homes, KCC, even at Kanaha Beach, anywhere else in the park. I help Matt
to work on Maui MPD cars. He needs help. I’m a hard worker because I want to help
my family and I want to be a citizen of the United States. I was from the Philippines
since 1993. I came to
because of my grandma passed away, because I was so
upset. 3ecause I want to help my mom and dad because my dad he needs help, even
my mom too. My brothers and sisters they need to finish their education. My brother
is going to military and my cousin too because they need to finish their education, My
mom works as a nurse in a home care facility and my dad he works at Monsanto.
Please support Ka Lima 0 Maui. Thank you so much.
-

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
also?

Thank you very much. That was great.

MR. WANDERSCHEID: Yes.

-

10-
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COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Go ahead.
MR. WANDERSCHEID: My name is Matt Wanderscheid. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui and the
reason why I like working at Ka Lima is because ever since I was a little kid I always
loved to do landscaping and that’s what my dream job was to do, and here I am doing
a landscaping business. I work at the Kihei Police station and I love it there and I
work around about and makes things feel really good. Every morning when I get up
for work, I always have a big smile and on my services, I love my job and they make
me feel like family. Every day I can’t wait to get home and tell my parents how my day
was. I just want to say thank you for your time and support us at Ka Lima 0 Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good job. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Debbie, will you be speaking?
MS. WANDERSCHEID: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Debbie Wanderscheid too.
MS. WANDERSCHEID: Thank you. Aloha, Councilmembers. I’m the other, one of the other
parts of his equation I guess. He loves his job. He didn’t
I’ve seen the changes in
his life since he started working for Ka Lima. Three or four years ago, he had severe
anxieties. Didn’t want to leave the house. We had to go through a lot of work and in it
all we discovered Ka Lima, and it’s been the biggest life changer we could ever
I
mean, we could not have imagined a better opportunity for our son in our lives. He
not only went through the waiver’s program and learned enough to get his driver’s
permit and he just got his license a couple of weeks ago, which is a big great I think
for us. And he’s so proud of working on the Police Department, at the Kihei Police
Department four days a week and he has purpose. He has hope. You know Ka Lima
has just given so many opportunities that we couldn’t have imagined getting anywhere
else and it’s made him mature, it’s made him a part of an independent citizen, he’s
registered to vote, he’s a contributing citizen in our community and I appreciate all of
your time and thank you so much. I would love to offer my support and testimony for
Ka Lima. Thank you, Ka Lima.
.

.

.

.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Lloy Neizman and he’ll be followed by Noah
Moscarillo. Good evening.
MR. NEIZMAN: I’m Llloy Neizman. I work at Ka Lima 0 Maui about a year and my job at Ka
Lima I do janitorial work in South side. And then we do the, take out trash, throw
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away rubbish, sweep, mop, make sure the parks are clean and then
Thank you.

.

.

.

That’s it.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Next testifier is Noah Moscarillo followed by Kassius
Wallace. Welcome.
MR. MOSCARILLO: Hello, my name is Noah Moscarillo. I’m 12 years old and I’m in the 6th
grade. I attend Hui Malama because I wasn’t doing very well in D.O.E. This is my
first year at Hui Malama. Hui Malama is important to me because they help me with
my school work and education but they also help me prepare for the real world. We
have regular subject classes like language, arts, science, and math. But we also learn
things like gardening and cooking. Some people might think that I don’t like to work
outside but I actually like gardening classes because we went to, we get to plant things
every day also. Everybody also has to work in the kitchen but I don’t like to wash the
dishes but I understand that I have to do my work and help everyone. I attend Hui
Malama
at Hui Malama they even take us shopping to get clothes and get us
prepared for things like the budget hearing and interviews. Something I really like
about Hui Malama is the program called “Purple Maia” where we learned to code and
make video games. I made three games, one of which is a prison escape game. I don’t
usually like to do school work but this was real interesting for me. So I love to go into
class and doing the work. At the end of the year or at the end of the course, we had a
celebration with our teachers from Oahu and our whole school. We showed everybody
our games and had them try it out. It was a big moment for my classmates and me.
Thank you.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Kassius Wallace and
he’ll be followed by Nalu Wallace. Go ahead.
MS. WALLACE: Hi, my name is Kassius Wallace and I’m five years old and I love to
skateboard because it is so fun and we would love a skate park Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you very much. Oh, another Wallace.
MS. WALLACE: Hi, my name is Kayne Wallace and I like to skateboard and please make a
skate park Upcountry.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Nalu, your turn.
MR. WALLACE: Hi, I’m Nalu Wallace and these are my kids. You know, the kids up here
they really deserve something like this, you know. There’s a skate park in every other
region on the island except for Upcountry and it’s such a beautiful area. I mean,
there’s not a lot for the kids to do. I mean, there’s sports but it’s not for everyone and
this is just a different outlet for everybody. And as you can see over here, there’s a lot
of people who are here in support of the skate park and who really want a skate park.
-
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And you know, as you can tell, it’s people of all ages.
teenagers and even people from your guys’ generation.

Like we have these kids,

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I don’t know about that one.
MR. WALLACE: Look in that crowd, there are some. We’ve got one maybe then. You know,
but it’s a sport that everybody can do for as long as they want to. Skateboarding has
no age limit, it has no boundaries, and that’s one of the beautiful things about it, and
it’d be nice to have a park Upcountry. Thank you guys so much for all your time. You
guys are awesome. Have a good night!

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. And we got the message.
testifier is Jacelynn Feiteira Freitas followed by Shelby Gomes.

The next

MS. GOMES: Hi, name is Shelby Gomes. I’m a freshman from King Kekaulike and I’m with
the MEO Youth Services. I’ve been with MEO for over four years. My role in MEO is to
be a youth leader. I help the younger youth, well, mentor them, and my experiences
in the youth service has been really great. We went to stores that sell alcohol and we
did these scans and the reason why we did it is because the store sell alcohol and we
wanted to determine if the alcohol was easily accessible to youth and they all passed.
We went to ten and they all passed. MEO is dedicated to their youth because no
matter how far we live, they’ll go the distance to take us home and come back for us.
This Saturday we’re going to Kamehameha’s Ho’olaulea and we’re going to have a
booth and in that booth we’re going to have informational and awareness brochures
and we’re going to pass them out to the youth, and we’re going to let them sign a no
drinking alcohol pledge. There’s going to be a game with the youth leaders. We’re
going to use fiddle goggles. It makes your vision like if you were drunk or under the
influence of alcohol. And you use the goggles and you throw something and if you get
it in then
yeah. I just want to thank you guys for listening to my story and for
taking the time to listen to me. Mahalo.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier.
MS. fREITAS: I’m Jacelyn Feiteira Freitas and I’ve been going to MEO since I was in 6th
grade. It’s my third year now. And ever since I’ve joined MEO I’ve been a part of a lot
of alcohol and tobacco use prevention, helping minors stay away from things like this.
And when I first started, I wouldn’t have been able to do these kinds of things. And
being with MEO I’ve learned confidence and I’ve learned responsibility more and more
as I’ve grown up. And me standing here today would have never happened when I first
started. But now that MEO has shown us the differences between responsibility and
-
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they’ve given us chances like they’ve taken us places and we’ve done sign waving.
Actually, today, we signed waved about alcohol and over the break we did a lot of
cleanups. We did a painting activity for mindfulness. And yeah, we enjoy the program
and we love coming here. It shows us so much. So please continue to fund and thank
you for listening to me today.
AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Cynthia Cagnoni.
I’m sorry if I’m messing up your name. And the next person is Eddie Caires.
MS. CAGNONI: Good evening. Aloha. Thank you so much, County Councilmembers, for
having us here. My name is Cynthia Cagnoni. I’m the Club Director of the Boys and
Girls Club of Maui
Makawao. I want to thank you for allowing us to share our
stories, our successes, and our goals for the future of our club. Most importantly, I’d
like to thank you for your financial support and providing a place for our youth of
Makawao, a positive place for our future generation. The year that I’ve been the
Director of the club I have seen much growth not just the numbers but in maturity.
As you can see, we have a beautiful crowd right behind me and very proud of them.
At the Boys and Girls Club at Makawao, we have 335 registered members. We’ve
outreached to over 300 members. We offer power hour and 200 members have
received help with their homework during power hour and at least 200 members or
more have participated in our project learn activities such as Sudoku, Magic Box,
word searches, Chess, 3-card pull, word of the week where they get to draw —they’re
given a word like “integrity” and they draw art of how that word makes them feel or
what it means to them through art.
So, kind of art therapy. We run fitness
challenges, word searches which are led by LIT members, and this person draws about
30 kids every Wednesday when he does his word searches, and on Mondays he does
charades and Pictionary and he draws another crowd of 20 kids. We offer 300 meals a
month thanks to our partnership with Maui Food Bank through Kid Cafes on
Wednesdays and Bistro on Fridays and that’s a combination of purchased food and
Maui Food Bank items. Every day during break we offer free meals, free lunch, free
breakfast as well. Our kids help us prepare meals and serve meals and then clean up
the kitchen so they learn responsibility. They learn leadership qualities. We provide
over 200 snacks a day
-

--

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. CAGNONI: --oh, my goodness, which is 4,000 snacks a month. But what’s most
importantly is we have quality programs that these kids love to participate in. We
have character and leadership. We have keystone, we have passport
—

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. CAGNONI:

--

to manhood, smart girls..

-

.

oh, my goodness.

14-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2016
Upcountry District (Pukalani-Kula-Ulupalakua)

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Three minutes. Could you please wrap it up?
MS. CAGNONI: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Airighty.
MS. CAGNONI: Is that all I get

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That’s it.
MS. CAGNONI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Eddie Caires followed
by Amanda Caires.
MR. CAIRES: Good evening and aloha, Members of the Council. My name is Eddie Caires.
I’m a fifth generation descendant of Portuguese and Japanese immigrants to Maui. I
grew up in Makawao. My family worked for Haleakala Dairy and Haleakala Ranch. I
have two daughters that attend the Makawao Boys and Girls Club. When I was a kid
growing up in Makawao in the 1970s and early ‘80s we had nothing like the Boys and
Girls Club. Maybe if we had something back then when I was a kid, I probably
wouldn’t have gotten into so much trouble like I did. But the Boys and Girls Club has
been a valuable resource to my children. My youngest daughter was recently voted
Youth of the Year for Makawao Club. My daughter Raven though very shy when she
was younger was able to develop her social skills. Both of them are incredible artists.
Both of them are very good students. They have all the opportunities to learn to be
leaders. They have great opportunity to learn to be mentors to younger kids. The
Boys and Girls Club has been a blessing to our family and I would really love to ask
for your continued support, and hey, you know, give a little extra. Thank you very
much. Aloha.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
followed by Raven Caires.

Our next testifier is Amanda Caires and shell be

MS. A. CAIRES: Good evening. Each and every day I attend the Boys and Girls Club. I
encounter the four most inspiring words I’ve ever heard. Great futures start here. Hi,
my name is Amanda Caires, And I’ve been a member of the Makawao Boys and Girls
Club for over six years. I’m a 15-year old freshman at King Kekaulike High School and
if it weren’t for the Boys and Girls Club, I definitely would not be on the same path I
am on today. When I was a little girl I was diagnosed with a speech impediment. As a
result of this, I was bullied. Not because of my condition but because I was so
ashamed I refused to talk to people. This lowered my self-confidence level and made
-
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me very shy. But ever since attending the Boys and Girls Club they have taught me
the importance of an education to do what’s right, to grow confidence and stand up for
others, sportsmanship, and many other character traits. But most importantly, they
taught me to be myself. It’s because of programs like power hour, project learn,
keystones, smart moves, girls club, art, music, and culinary that makes this all
possible. Just recently, I was awarded the Makawao Girls and Boys Club Youth of the
Year position where I got so many opportunities to meet new people, to share my
story, and inspire others to be the best that they can be. So now, see, this place
provides the light, the road, and the hope to help anybody go through a dark tunnel in
their life. Now it’s my turn to be a mentor to all youth and teach them everything the
Boys and Girls Club has taught me. In three years, I plan on graduating with honors
with the Class of 2019 and attend the Art Institute in Chicago so that one day I can
become an Art Director. So I say, thank you, for supporting the Boys and Girls Club
today and many more years to come in the hopes of inspiring keiki because it’s true
great futures start here. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good job. Our next testifier is Raven Caires and she’ll be
followed by Nicodemus Carroll. Good evening.
MS. R. CAIRES: Good evening. First off I would like to thank the County Council for giving
me the opportunity to share my story as well as financially supporting the Boys and
Girls Club. Hi, my name is Raven Caires and I’m a 16-year old Junior at Kekaulike
High School, and I attend the Boys and Girls Club of Maui Makawao Clubhouse,
which I’ve been going to for nearly eight years now. Without your support, none of the
things that I have now that are a part of me would exist. There would be no art club,
no staff, no power hour, or project learn to teach me, to help me be empowered to do
my homework. And no members, no one to eventually ask if they’d like to play pool.
Nearly eight years ago, December before my 9th birthday was the first time I’d heard
about Boys and Girls Club and I desperately wanted to attend. I spent all summer
begging my parents to let me become a member. I did research and I basically, I
nagged them about it the whole time and I told them that being a part of Boys and
Girls Club would be good for me but I was met with disappointment every time. There
was always an excuse. I wasn’t old enough. I wouldn’t like it. We lived too far away.
And it was always something. But later that year for my 9th birthday my present was
actually becoming a member of the Boys and Girls Club and that started my growth.
Becoming a member of the Boys and Girls Club did not give me talent but enhanced
my talent and helped me become a socially adept and uniquely intelligent individual.
Being a part of the Boys and Girls Club has given me many opportunities to show my
talent. Earlier this year, I was asked to paint a door for a contest, and I actually did
not make the deadline but I will be entered into next year’s contest which I aspire to
win. At my Boys and Girls Club of Maui Makawao, I am part of a program called LIT
or Leaders in Training. For this program, I helped the staff and run my own program,
writing club. I have ten members ranging between the ages of 9 and 15 and we meet
one to two times a month where I teach them about different kinds of writing and
-

-

-
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English skills and have them turn around and use those skills to write stories. If the
Boys and Girls Club was not there, I would probably not be as socially active as I am.
I am a very introverted person. Without the Boys and Girls Club, I probably would not
be able to get up here and speak to you today. Thank you for your support.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
and he’ll be followed by Crystal Carroll.

Our next testifier is Nicodemus Carroll

MR. CARROLL: I just wanted to say that I’ve been going to Boys and Girls Club for a year
and a half now. And I’m 13 at Kalama School and at Boys and Girls Club I do a lot of
events. In October, I was a little chef in little chef/big chef, and without Boys and
Girls Club I wouldn’t have met a lot of people and I wouldn’t be doing all of these
events. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Kevin Follstad.

Next testifier is Crystal Carroll and Crystal will be followed by

MS. CARROLL: Good evening. My name is Crystal Carroll. I’m here on behalf of the Boys
and Girls Club and my two boys who are members of the Upcountry Boys and Girls
Club. I was a little surprised to be up here today but I’m very grateful for the
opportunity. I’m also very grateful as a mom of two Maui keiki to be able to have an
opportunity or somewhere for my children to go. The Boys and Girls Club has offered
them very
or numerous opportunities has helped my oldest son, my younger son
is newer to the club, has offered my older son numerous opportunities. It has helped
develop his character a lot, It’s also given them both a place to go to after school as an
option, somewhere where they feel safe and some place where they feel proud to be a
part of. It has definitely developed their character in so many ways and I’m forever
grateful. I’m being here tonight, I wouldn’t have come if it wasn’t for the Boys and
Girls Club but being able to hear the stories and the testimonials from the other
participants here has really motivated me to be very proud of the community I am a
part of, and it has also really made me hope that you guys find the funding not only to
continue to support things that my children are a part of but things that are very
important for our community. Listening to the skate park, these children who go to
the school that my children go to it is awesome something that is very important and
I’m very, very grateful for the opportunity and for our leaders such as yourself who
provide time, money, and support for our keiki. Thank you very much.
.

AUDIENCE:

...

.

.

(applause)...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier is Kevin Folistad followed by
francis Quitazol, Jr. Good evening.

MR. FOLLSTAD: Good evening. Good evening, distinguished Councilmembers. My name is
Kevin Follstad and I’m the Technology Coordinator and one of the Robotics coaches at
Pukalani Elementary School. I’m honored to speak on behalf of all the good that the
Maui Economic Development Board and Women in Technology are doing to help fund
science and technology programs at our school. Over the last two years, our robotics
program has grown from being none existent into a sustained enterprise that has
hosted robotics education camps over spring and summer breaks, is working to
expand STEM education across all grade levels, and has sent three out of four teams
over the last two years to the VEX Robotics World Championship in Louisville,
Kentucky. None of this, literally none of it, would have happened without the support
that we have received from MEDB. We learned about robotics and the event they
sponsored and they gave us our small robotics kit to start our program. Along the
way, MEDB has given us funding to purchase the additional kits needed for students
to design and build the robots that you see over there today. They’ve even helped us
with some of the travel expenses we’ve incurred going to the State and World
championships. If that wasn’t enough, they provided additional grant funding so that
our school could afford an advance science curriculum. To say that science and
technology, education and our school would be a shadow of what it is today without
the support we’ve received from MEDB is not an exaggeration. We’re forever indebted
to them for deciding to invest in our students and today I’m asking to
I’m asking
you to continue to contribute to their program so that they continue to support strong
science and technology programs like ours. People often say, children are the future;
but investing in that is one of those less popular ideas. I can see how easy it would be
to cut a funding for a program to support far off goals. But I assure you that these 14
students over there today are the future engineers, scientists, and leaders of Maui.
Over the past season they’ve worked, they’ve worked hundreds of hours like 120 hours
after school and on weekends just in January alone prepping for regional, State and
the World competition. I’ve never seen students work harder. Over that time, they’ve
learned science principles and how to program, learn how to overcome obstacles and
solve their own problems and they’ve done all of that to turn their dreams into reality.
If you really want to invest in the future, I can’t think of a better way than to empower
those passionate students who have that drive to change the future. So please
continue to support MEDB Women in Technology and by proxy programs like ours.
Thank you, guys.
.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Francis Quitazol, Jr.
and he’ll be followed by Allison Jackson. Good evening.
MR. QUITAZOL: Aloha, Council. My name is Francis Quitazol and I’m the Natural Resource
Manager with the Maui Nature Conservancy. We’ve received some money from your
DWS programs and I’m just here to say “Mahalo” for that and a lot of that funding and
-
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support was used to build three miles of fencing a couple of years ago. And with that
money, and since that time, that fence line has increased our preserve to be the
largest private nature preserve in the State. And last year April I testified I think it
was in front of you guys our fence was just completed and we just started
management and since then we’ve achieved a bunch of conservation goals and you
guys will see it in the reports and everything. I guess what I want to say is that with
the Nature Conservancy, your support and the funding that we received, each dollar
goes a long way and we ensure that the money is put forth to conservation and to
protect the resources of Maui. The work we do ensures good, clean water. If you guys
are familiar with the area that we built the fence, it’s that EMI parcel and that feeds
into the upper flumes which provide a lot of the fresh water that we receive in this
Upcountry area for Upcountry and Kula. So
it’s a lot of hard work but we’re a
small staff and together with our partners from the East Maui Watershed and the
bunch of different landowners we were able to achieve a lot of Conservation goals. So,
once again, I just want to say mahalo for you guys support and look forward to seeing
more funds in the future.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Allison Jackson and she’ll followed by Barry
Gay.
MS. JACKSON: Aloha. Good evening and thank you for your time for listening to my
testimony tonight. I’m Allison Jackson. Mom of three-year old Calvin Jackson, a
student currently enrolled with the Maui Economic Opportunity Head Start Program
at Makawao, Eddie Center. I’m speaking as an advocate on behalf of Makawao Eddie
Center’s families we thank you, County Councilmembers, for continuing your support
in funding this invaluable program. Without the Head Start Program, Calvin would
not have equal opportunities to early childhood education as most children do. He
was diagnosed with Type I diabetes a year and a half ago. This diagnosis requires
around the clock monitoring. Managing this disease is much more critical in toddlers
than bigger folks. Without proper management Type I can be lethal. Diabetes is a
recognized disability by the federal government and the Department of Education.
Currently, for Calvin to attend school, he must always be accompanied by a certified
skilled nurse. Calvin will need a nurse with him throughout his school day until he
learns to self-manage. There is a remarkable team of well over 20 people in the
D.O.E., Head Start, and public health service programs who have helped Calvin thrive
and receive an education. It is paramount all plans are in place before he starts
Kindergarten. It takes numerous meetings, a large pile of paperwork, significant
emaffing and phone calls. I can’t even pretend to know exactly how much time
everyone has put into Calvin’s education plan to take care of all the odds and ends
that give Calvin his right to an education. Private preschools do not provide nurses.
They do not have IEPs. They do not meet the need of every child. Head Start is the
only preschool program in Maui that affords Calvin’s right to an equal education
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opportunity in the most least restricted environment as is his legal right under the
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 Plan. Not only is this right being met,
it’s expanding new horizons for children with disabling health conditions. As the Head
Start Disability Manager pointed out “your circumstance is so unique when speaking
of Calvin’s opportunity to interact and learn alongside his peers. He, too, has afforded
us the opportunity to learn and expand our knowledge on how to best meet the needs
of a child with a health condition such as his.” I know firsthand that the Head Start
staff take great pride and care in their jobs, the children and families they help. The
faculty at Makawao Eddie Center have the children’s best interest at heart. This is a
program
--

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. JACKSON: --that deserves recognition and respect. I want to thank from the bottom of
my heart the MEO Head Start staff. Thank you. And to you guys for listening to this
story, and we thank you for continuing to support this program and granting
--

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. JACKSON: --our children the educational rights that would not otherwise be available.
Mahalo.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier is Barry Gay and he’ll be followed
by Aaron “Moose” Reichert. Go ahead, Barry.
MR. GAY: Thank you. My name is Barry Gay and I’m the Project Coordinator at Tn-Isle
Resource Conservation and Development Council, and I’m here tonight to speak in
favor of the line item for $8,000 which would allow Tn-Isle to purchase the AmpliFund
grant management software. The County of Maui recently purchased this software for
its own purposes and this at least for Tn-Isle validates its capacity and usefulness. In
Fiscal Years 15 and 16, Tri-Isle brought in and managed over $4 million in public and
private sector grants for over 200 different programs in Maui County. We administer,
expend, and audit these grants on a Fiscal Year 16 operating budget of $372,000 of
which over $161,000 are non-payroll costs. Tn-Isle sees the AmpliFund as cutting
edge grants management software that will allow us to become more cost effective,
efficient, and audit ready. Tri-Isle is a Federal 50 1C-3 designated grants management
and grant making organization, is committed to becoming more supportive and
capable of fostering the nonprofit software sector as a dynamic and vital economic
engine for Maui County. We want to continue our partnership with the County of
Maui in the provision of government services our communities throughout Maui,
Molokal and Lanai expect. Thank you and good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

-
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AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Aaron Reichert and he’ll be followed by
Malcolm Cooper. Good evening.
MR REICHERT: Good evening, Council. I appreciate everyone’s involvement in the past year
in some of the more bicycle activities on Maui. I hope everybody is reconnected with
that feeling of freedom that you found as a youth when you rode bicycles. And I know
that’s where my heart has been for a very long time and why I stand before you. I’m
here to speak a little bit about the West Maui greenway and it is a really neat project.
You know the benefits has been really spoke about the economic impact that it can
bring to the community of Maui as a whole. I think, you know, that is a gem and a
great resource and what that could bring on the basis of more than economic but
green. I mean, you know how choked up that highway is and most of the people are
gathering there to sightsee and see the whales and get to the beaches. And what a
greenway would do there it would really help alieve [sic] some of that traffic problem
there. And also as a community it would be a really nice safe place that families could
take their kids and people could run and jog, you know. You see it in so many cities
and urban places and, you know, Maui is lacking that. We have the North Shore
greenway that’s getting there. I would urge you to really pass this through because it
will set a precedence and it will correlate out to improving more upon that North Shore
greenway and get a South Shore greenway and an Upcountry greenway, which is
already slated and planned. Those are great things. I also want to talk about
something that’s dear to my heart. If you’ve been familiar with Upcountry, there was a
bike park that was a private thing right off of Baldwin and it was a beautiful thing.
The community
they had almost 500 yearly passes there. People were coming
from Kapalua and Napili bringing their kids like $0 percent were kids.
So
economically, you know, structure it couldn’t make it and they lowered the prices just
so that people could be involved in the community and it shut down. And it’s left a
really big gap in that bicycle community not just in Upcountry but for Maui alone. So
I just want to urge you if there is anything that ever came slated or in mind’s eye that
Maui would need a bike park also, you know, in the County parks and rec. It’s very
cheap. Very economic. Dirt is not very hard to work with. You know I’ve had the
pleasure of helping with the bike park with the State and that was a great
construction
.

.

.

.

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MR. REICHERT: Thank you. And really great resource for the community. And so anything
in correlation with State parks and, you know, as we’re building baseball fields and
whatnot that are.
.

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MR. REICHERT: Thank you. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Malcolm Cooper and
hell be followed by Paula Ambre.
MR. COOPER: Hello, my name is Malcolm Cooper. I’ve been a swim coach Upcountry for
Maui Dolphins for 15 years, Meet Director for all the high schools and age group swim
meets on Maui and some other islands, and coach for seniors and adults in Learn to
Swim Fitness fun work outs. Participated in water polo, do most of the scoring for
spring board diving. I also worked for Maui County Aquafics for a couple years so
know the workings of Parks and Recreation. Maui is No Ka Oi. Of course because of
its natural beauty, green space and not being a city. But for our residents, it’s No Ka
Oi in large part because of our parks and the access people have to them. Every
island is
in the mainland has water, sewer, roads, not everyone has the parks and
the pools spaced around the County that we do. We’re more special than people
know. Not only do we have access during the day with open swim and some programs
offered by Aquatics but most days more people use the pools before and after school
for kids and work for adults. Our tax paying families can’t really use the facilities
during the day during work and school. We have high school and age group programs
after pool hours to serve residents of all ages especially Maui’s youth at no cost to the
County. We have over 300 children who compete in swim meets. Well over 600
swimming with teams all or part of the year. Maui’s six teams teach another 200 plus
children every year that don’t stick with swimming as a full-year sport. These teams
teach Maui’s youth to swim and make them safer in the ocean around us. This serves
as a safe supervised place for them to be after school, build character, pride and
achievement, and a lifetime habit of fitness. We also have adults who swim and
practice before and after hours. Half or more of those are seniors. Most adults swim
for fitness and fun with a certified coach to help with technique and a few for
competition, and many because they can’t swim during business hours. Maui’s also
fortunate to have water polo and diving programs, and again, all these no cost to the
County except for the pool maintenance that you have to do anyway as long as you’ve
got the poois. So my purpose tonight is to make you aware and familiar with the
amazing facilities we have and how they benefit all our neighbors. I want you to know
how important these pools are to Maui’s families Countywide, including Molokai where
I run a satellite team. And please consider these things when you’re reviewing the
budget. The fees and assessments for parks and the reorgs that are going on. Keep
the funds needed for maintenance and facility access. Lifeguards don’t cut them.
Don’t double tax property taxpayers to use their facilities after work hours. Beware
reorders of the direct maintenance support away from the poois and could decrease
pool safety during the day. And mostly beware of the changing permit process that
makes access to parks facilities so burdensome that it pushes pools and other
activities away or makes them more expensive pushing away families of lesser means.
.

.

.

—

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MR. COOPER: Basically, I want to make sure we don’t change things to make serving our
youth, adults, and seniors more difficult. Thank you.
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AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
she’ll be followed by Monica Gutierrez.

Our next testifier is Paula Ambre and

MS. AMBRE: Aloha, Councilmembers. With your approval, may I have our three mothers
provide their testimony before I do?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Any objections? No. Go ahead.
MS. AMBRE: Thank you.
MS. GUTIERREZ: Good evening, County Councilmembers. My name is Monica Gutierrez
and I’m testifying on behalf of The Maui Farms Family Strengthening Program and
MEO Head Start. My adopted special needs daughter attends Makawao Head Start.
Head Start is such a huge help for her. We need your help in continuing to support
Head Start from 7:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Without Head Start my child would not get
the much needed she needs. She is learning so much. About three months ago, I was
given a 45-day notice to vacate the home my four children and I were living in. I was
devastated because I knew how difficult it is to find HUD approved housing in Maui.
In addition, I had adopted my three special needs foster children a few months prior to
my eviction. I felt very sad and discouraged and disappointed that I would not be able
to provide for my children a safe home and possible to become homeless. As my
eviction got closer, I had to look for other options. Ka Hale A Ke Ola had a waiting list
of two months long and family Life Center was just a temporary plan for my family
and I. Through MEO Head Start I discovered The Maui Farm. The Maui farm has not
only given us a home but it has also given us a peace and safety. I am able to get task
done in a supportive community of other women and children who are going through
similar situations. Since we’ve been living at the farm, we are able to grow our own
food, learn to feed and care for the animals, eat healthier, get better time management,
and the staff at Maui Farm has been very supportive to my children and I. Because
my children have special needs the animals have been especially helpful
therapeutically and emotionally. I am still currently looking for a home and I’m on the
verge of losing my
voucher. I’ve already used my extension period. I do daily
searches on Craig’s list two to three times a day. I also look for ads on other sites in
hopes to find a home. Lastly, I would like to say that I am very grateful for The Maui
Farm. My children and I would be living in our car if we didn’t have the opportunity to
live on the farm. I would like to urge the County Council to continue to support The
Maui Farm and the families strengthening program. This program has helped my
family and I to live like I would to see them continue to help other families who are in
need. Thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Next mom.
MS. McMAHAN: Good evening. My name is Jennifer McMahan, I’ve living in Maui for over
30 years. Tonight I’m testifying in support of The Maui farm’s Family Strengthening
Program as well as MEO Head Start and Women Helping Women. About eight months
ago, my children
Chloe who’s four and Bobby who is two and I was living in an
abusive situation, I realized that we needed to leave and find a safe place, clean and
sober place to live. At the time, I made the decision to stop using and leave that
lifestyle behind. I knew that being sober was the only way my children and I would
remain together as a family. After living at Women Helping Women for a few months, I
learned about The Maui Farm and its programs. I was hoping that the farm would be
a safe substance and alcohol free place for my family to move to. I am very grateful for
the opportunity to live at The Maui Farm. The family strengthening program has
brought my family closer together and has made us stronger. I also have two older
sons who are happy to be part of our lives today. Living at the farm has made this
possible. Since living at the farm, I’ve also learned so much about planting, growing
food, the animals, and also I’ve been able to budget and save money. The farm helped
me set up an account that I put money into and when I leave, I will have seed money
that I can use to start over. The environment at The Maui Farm has also helped me to
stay clean and sober for the last 11 months. Because of lack of affordable housing
and a limited support system here on Maui, I’m planning on moving to California this
summer. In closing, I would like to ask the County Council to support the Maui Farm
and the Family Strengthening Program as well as MEO and Women Helping Women.
-

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And our next mom.
MS. GRIFFITH: Hello, my name is Erin Griffith and I’m here to give testimony on behalf of
The Maui Farm. I’m a former resident of The Maui Farm and a graduate of their
Family Strengthening Program and Stipend Program. I lived at The Maui Farm for 18
months with my three children after I left an ongoing abusive marriage and was at risk
for being homeless. I moved from The Maui Farm 9 ‘/2 months ago in July 2015. It
has been a big adjustment to being on my own as a single parent with three children.
The support I had from the staff at The Maui Farm helped me get ready for that big
transition.
The weekly support groups with other mothers and the family
strengthening program helped me prepare for the stress of raising children as a single
parent. It was extremely useful to hear other mothers’ solutions to difficult moments
I’ve experienced in child raising. I’m still friends with many of the women I met there
so I now have a network of sisters who understand how far I have come and to whom I
can turn to for support. The Maui Farm was a wonderful safe and healing place for
my children and me to live. As a family among many things we learned were
gardening and farming skills. My children will always have sweet memories of the
time they lived at The Maui Farm planting food and helping care for the animals there.
-
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While I was living at the Maui Farm I was also able to restart my career. I am now
able to follow my passion again and do what I love which is teaching. I teach at the
Carden Academy during the school year and Seabury Hall in the summer. Because I
have the opportunity to live at The Maui Farm and be a part of their programs I had
time to get my bearings and stabilize my family. I was able to find an Upcountry
apartment to live in. It took a while to find a welcoming place for my family with three
young children. And it’s been a challenge to keep up with the cost of living on one
income but I have found that single parents are some of the most resourceful people
around. I ask that the County Council please continue to support the Maui Farm and
their programs for families. There are many of us mothers who need a chance to free
ourselves from unhealthy situations and create new realities for our families, and The
Maui Farm gave me that chance. Mahalo for your lime.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Paula Ambre.
MS. AMBRE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: She’ll be followed by Tucker Jahrmarkt.
MS. AM3RE: Aloha, Councilmembers. I’m Paula Ambre. I’m Executive Director of The Maui
Farm. I want to acknowledge our moms Monica, Jen and Em for their testimony
tonight. We are very proud of these women and they’re courageous women in all of
their accomplishments. Theirs are the true stories of how families are challenged in
our community facing the impacts of family violence, experiencing economic
challenges and lack of affordable housing yet making the commitment to make
changes and to create and maintain a safe and healthy home environment for
themselves and their children. We want to thank them for sharing tonight how The
Maui Farm has helped them move forward towards self-sufficiency. And on behalf of
all of our Maui Farm ohana, our Board of Directors, our staff, our volunteers, our
program participants, we want to thank you for your support for our Family
Strengthening Program, our farm-based family center residential program serving
families who are homeless due to domestic violence and economic challenges. With
your support we’re helping struggling members of our community to create a brighter
future for themselves and their children. We’re very grateful for your investment in
the Family Strengthening Program and in The Maui Farm over the years, and we want
you to know that we also conduct our own fundraising and resource development
activities so that we are supplementing and leveraging the County’s core support. We
receive funding through Maui United Way, grants like the Charity Walk and Friends of
Hawaii Charities, the Sony Open, we raise the balance of funds through private and
corporate foundation grants, support from family foundations, advance and our
annual donations.
We also, for our farm-based educational programs, conduct
significant funding and we operate those programs without any County support. So
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we want you to know that we are out there really trying to do our best to leverage the
investment that you are making and to bring other donors to support our work.
Oftentimes those donors don’t just come from within our community. Sometimes
they’re coming from Oahu especially a lot of the foundations. We have supporters
from the mainland, we have part-time residents who support us and so these are new
dollars that are coming in to our Maui community as an economic stimulus. And so
we want you to know that our organization especially our wonderful and very strong
board of directors we’re working hard to create a stable funding source for our
organization moving forward. But the County support is critical to our ability to do
that and we ask you to continue to offer us that core support and know that we are
doing our part. We’re also continuing our efforts to streamline our operations. In the
past year we installed photovoltthc systems on our five residential structures. We were
given a great opportunity by Maui Solar Project to do this and we financed a five-year
loan with First Hawaiian Bank. No County funds were used. At the end of that five
years, we’re paying those wonderful $20.00 a month of electric bills with no loan
behind it. Last year, we also completed a Community Development Block Grant and
did some rehabilitation of our residential facilities.
MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. AMBRE: We are also on the list being recommended for CDBG funding. This will help
us to maintain our facilities which are over 20 years old. We are included in the
Mayor’s budget. There is an increase in our line item as we have requested.
MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. AMBRE: We ask you to please support that allocation and thank you so much for your
investment and support of The Maui Farm.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Tucker Jahrmarkt followed by Cheryl Tipton.
MR. JAHRMARKT: Okay. Hello, everyone. My name is Tucker Jahrmarkt and I’m a senior
at King Kekaulilce High School, and I’m here representing the skateboarding
community Upcountry. We’re asking for your support for the full funding of the
Upcountry skate park so it can get underway. And one of the major benefits of the
park will be the community aspect it’s involved with it. I, personally, have met a lot of
my friends who is skating since skating involves people of all ages and types then they
all get to meet up at the skate park and build sort of a community. Long ago,
community decided things, people can learn through skateboarding many valuable life
skills they can apply elsewhere like overcoming failure and perseverance, and adapting
to new surroundings and stuff so they can learn how to do new tricks and whatnot.
And it also promotes healthy and active lifestyles so they don’t sit around and do
-

26

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2016
Upcountry District (Pukalani-Kula-tflupalakua)

nothing. It gives them something to do. And it also keeps them away from negative
things like drugs or crime or anything like that and, urn, yeah, basically. The
Upcountry skate park is defmifively needed for the community. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Caroline Kilthour.

Our next testifier is Cheryl Tipton, and she’ll be followed by

MS. TIPTON: Councilmembers, good evening and thank you for bringing these district
meetings Upcountry so that we can share our thoughts with you. As President of the
Hui Noeau Visual Arts Center Board of Directors, I’m here to ask for your support for
funding for a special new program and that children 2 1/2 years old to 18 years old
it’s called Inspiration Steam. We currently have no funding from the County except
some occasional grants from the Department. As you probably know, Hui Noeau is a
nonprofit. Our education organization dedicated to sharing visual arts with the entire
community. The programs are for individuals of all ages but we really focus a lot on
youth programs. And I’d like to take this opportunity again before I tell you more
about our youth programs, to thank the County again for the support they gave us
back in 2006 where we had to come up quickly, very quickly with funds to purchase
our home or lose it. And I’m talking about the beautiful Upcountry campus which will
be 100 years old in 2017. I think you would be really proud of all that we’ve
accomplished since then. Just for last fiscal year alone, and Iii use the past tense
here but believe me these programs are ongoing. We have 17 weeks of camp for youth
where art making was shared with between 14 and 35 children a day. New classes for
teenagers were offered in photography and jewelry, studios as well as an afternoon
photo club. There were 13 different classes for preschoolers. We had visits from over
275 preschool students from around the island, and we held a number of afterschool
classes. We initiated family Fridays where children and their parents collaborate to
create art work and the target age for these family gatherings are children 3 to 12.
Overall, not just for youth, we had over 400 classes with 35 local teaching artists and
30 was visiting artists from other islands and the mainland. We hosted over 17,000
visitors, artists, educators, and community members. We’re able to show case Maui
artists and Made on Maui products through our exhibitions and our gift shop. Of
course, as a nonprofit, we have to raise the money to accomplish all of this. If parents
can’t afford to pay for a child’s class, we have scholarships readily available and we
have specific funding set aside from generous members
-

--

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. TIPTON: --of our community. We help to incorporate inspiration theme as a new facet
and Caroline Killhour is here. She is our Executive Director and will give you more
information about the importance of art into our programs. Thank you.

-
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AUDIENCE:

...

(applause).

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Caroline Killhour.
MS. KILLHOUR: Hi, good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Caroline will be followed by Mitzi Toro.
MS. KILLHOUR: Hi, good evening and thank you for all your hard work. And thanks
everyone out here for all the great stuff that’s going on in our community. It’s really
wonderful to be part of it. I’m here to represent the Hui Noeau and our new program
Steam. And we wanted to ask your support because we really feel that visual design
and art education is a very important skill for our children. We believe it’s a key tool
for our children’s tool box. The Steam program that we have will integrate the arts
into the categories of science, technology and engineering. We will be providing oncampus and off-campus workshops for students ages 2 to 18. These will include
things like teen smithing and jewelry making, and fabrication, exploration and film
photography, botanical drawings and studies, glass swelling and fabrication, and
preschool 2D and 3D projects. We want to lent your help in leveraging our wonderful
campus, teachers, visiting artists and our funders. We want to amplify our facilities to
reach more children on Maui. Graphic design and three dimensional thinking these
are all very important skills for children to have in the future. If you think about
technology like the iPhone, for example, it’s amazing but what if it was ugly or hard to
hold in your hand or heavy? Would this still be as popular or so key to our lives or so
visible? Product design is not only math but it’s fabrication, function, and aesthetics.
This primarily problem solving in the real world and real time. Steam involves making
something, doing something, creative something, and learning through this. Although
the thought process and problem solving comes along but the thinking and the
making this is an alternative way to remember things instead of sitting passively. So
this is a really wonderful project. I want you to consider your dally life and mine and
our future lives and mine. I’m sure we all agree we will be spending more time with
the computers and think how much of an advantage our children will have if their
visual skills and their graphic skills, design skills, photography, photo editing and
animation and digital film, etc. are stronger. Think about all the times and ways that
you use color theory and proportion.
-

-

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes and 45 seconds.
MS. KILLHOUR: These are all very important so thank you very much for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Andrew Beerer.

Our next testifier is Mitzi Toro and Mitzi will be followed by
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MS. TORO: My name is Mitzi Toro. I’m the owner of the Maui Cookie Lady, and we are a
start up business that started three years ago from my dad, he died, he was a
fundraiser. I’m a school teacher and I only have a background in business so we’ve
grown very quickly, very fast. We’re now at many hotels, the airport. We’ve been
shipping all around the world. We built our own bakery but as successful we’ve been I
don’t know the business part. I just like cookies so we’re lucky other people do too
but we were going to close our doors last year because all my receipts were kind of in a
shoe box and I didn’t know what I was doing.
So I went to Maui Economic
Development Board and I asked them to help me because I needed to get, to know my
numbers so we could continue our business. So Maui Economic Development Board
helped us with a break-even analysis. They helped me learn the difference between
fixed and variable cost. They came and talked to our group last year or last month for
the Food Innovation Center, and they’ve been extremely approachable and helpful,
following up and making sure that we have all the resources that we need. They
introduced us to the four core. So I took the four core and I graduated. And they also
have been doing a lot of really, important workshops. I just recently did a workshop to
learn the difference between contracted employees and regular employees so I applied
for my Department of Labor number and I now officially employ seven people. And six
of my seven employees are born and raised on Maui. One is born and raised on
Molokai, and we are doing really well now as a result of MEDB and all the help that
they’ve given us. And we have gone from an expensive hobby to now a viable business
and we are about to introduce the first cookie butter from the State of Hawaii. Cookie
butter is really big on the mainland and so it was a natural growth for our business to
go from cookies to cookie butter and we have a lot of people excited about it so they’re
helping us with that as well as far as understanding our numbers and our plans and
all that good stuff. So I’m really here to testify on MEDB and everything that they offer
small business. Our plans are to keep production on Maui and as we grow to keep the
jobs on Maui.
AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, go right ahead. Hang on for a second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know no one has asked questions so I want to make this
quick. First of all, did you bring any cookies for us to sample? No?
MS. TORO: I thought about that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that’s the end of that story. Thank you.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Mr. Beerer, we’re going to listen to you and then Chair,
with your permission, could we take a little break for everybody? Okay, go ahead.
MR. BEERER: Thank you. I’m here to speak on behalf of the Upcountry...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your name?
MR. BEERER: Oh, I’m sorry. My name is Andrew Beerer. I’m a small business person and a
youth advocate and a recreational advocate. I’ve been working with the youth on Maui
at the skate parks for about 15 years now. And I would like to thank you for your
service and being here tonight.
And Councilmembers Victorino and Balsa,
congratulations on your last term and your last Budget hearings and, hopefully, you’ll
be living a legacy of positive recreational experiences for these youth. So I’m speaking
on behalf of the Upcountry skate park. And what we are here to do is advocate for the
full funding of the park at $1.2 million. We know that’s a lot of money but that is
what is required to actually get the park started. If you come in with half of that,
they’ve told us that they can’t even get it started. So we are really pushing for the full
funding. The skate park provides a wonderful outlet for these youth and one thing I
really love about skateboarding, I’m also a little league coach, a soccer coach, but
skateboarding is a catchall and sometimes a safety net that catches you that don’t
naturally fall into the certain segments of other sports or the time out of those sports.
A lot of times they don’t have the parents who are active, who have signed them up for
other sports or are coaching them in other sports. So a lot of times that peer group in
that community is the only thing that’s keeping them from the negative aspects that
Tucker talked about. So I would like to keep this brief but thank you very much for
your support and would also like to recognize all the skateboarders and supporters
who came tonight and they would like to be respectful of your time and everybody else
so you think it’s appropriate at break to, that we should excuse the group and only
have the speakers come up, we can do so but just as you feel is most appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That sounds fine.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

MR. BEERER: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We are
can have the opportunity to
Please help yourselves to the
minutes so please come right
(gavel)...

going to be taking a short intermission here so the staff
rest a little bit here and take care of personal needs.
refreshments whatever is left, and we will be back in 10
back so we can continue. Thank you. We are in recess

RECESS: 7:32 p.m.
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RECONVENE: 7:44 p.m.

We’re going to call the meeting back to order if we
(gavel).
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
could please get going so we’ll get you home before midnight. Our next testifier is
Carrie Ann Shirota and Carrie Ann will be followed by Gretchen Cardoso. Good
evening.
.

.

.

.

.

MS. SHIROTA: Good evening, Chair Hokama and Members of the Council. My name is
MEO
Carrie Ann Shirota and I’m here to testify in support of two programs
of
Maui,
on
the
island
retired
dentist
a
Start.
My
dad,
MEO
Head
Transportation and
had a stroke about 16 years ago and he’s also a dialysis patient, He relies upon MEO
Transportation to get him to Haiku for dialysis treatment. And that has been a
godsent for our family. It helps him with his own independence but also last year my
dad fell he previously was paraplegic now he’s effectively a quadriplegic and we can’t
transport him in our vehicles because of the specialized wheelchair that he needs. So
I want to thank you for supporting transportation and for all those other patients. On
the flip side, my son whose 4 years old is currently at Head Start Makawao A. At the
age of two, my son was diagnosed with developmental, pervasive developmental
disorder not otherwise specified and that’s just a clinical term for autism spectrum.
My son qualifies for Head Start because of his diagnosis through the D.O.E. and what
I’m here to ask is for your support to continue to provide inclusive learning
environment for children like my son and others like Calvin’s mother, Ala’s mother
that you heard from today. Through the D.O.E. my son is eligible for preschool. As
you know, Hawaii does not provide for universal preschool. They only provide for
children who are special needs preschool opportunity but in that situation it’s
considered a “self-contained classroom,” meaning that only children with special
needs or disabilities are paired together. They do not have the opportunity for an
inclusive learning environment. On the other hand, MEO Head Start allows for
inclusive classroom so a number of seats are set aside for children with disabilities as
well as their quote “regular peers.” And that has been a blessing. My son, who has
received early intervention from Imua and other community support services has
blossomed. He is now, has non-stop language. He speaks from the moment he wakes
up till the time he goes to bed. I always knew that he was very bright. He actually
started reading at 3 1/2 years old. It’s incredible what his strengths are. But at the
same time, if he were to walk into this room, this would be really difficult. Perhaps
because of the lighting, the noise, the transition, so many things that we have yet to
know. And as you support different programs, please consider the growing prevalence
of children with autism in our community. One in 6$ children will be diagnosed with
autism; one in 42 boys; one in 189 girls
—

--

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. SHIROTA: --and this is greatly affecting our community. And I just want to say that the
a reflection of our moral priorities. Without this
budget is a moral reflection
inclusive environment, my son would not have an opportunity. Private schools,
private/public schools
—

--
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MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. SHIROTA: --are costly, and in many cases they have selection criteria that would
exclude my son. Please continue to support MEO Head Start. Mahalo for the
opportunity to testify.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you so much. Our next testifier is Gretchen Cardoso. Go
ahead. I understand we have a couple of moms so with everybody’s okay well just let
them speak so they can both go together. Go ahead.
MS. DeVERA-IGARTA: Hi, I’m Andrea DeVera-Igarta. My daughter goes to MEO Head Start,
Makawao B so first of all I would like to thank you for the extended hours of MEO
Head Start. I am able to join the Policy Council and become a board councilmember.
And with this opportunity my daughter has been able to become very social with
children her age and in our community. Everywhere she goes she has made friends
with everybody. And the program teaches her things that I, personally, didn’t even
know. So we would get into arguments about that. And educationally for my kids I
can see the difference between my children because I have three daughters which the
oldest and youngest both attended Head Start but my
so my fifth grader she
attended Head Start and now she reads at 5th grade level and her math is 9th grade
level. And my middle child did not attend Head Start and she struggles in everything
in second grade. And so I feel that the program planted a seed that I wasn’t able to do
with one, you know, with our kids by ourselves. And I hope in the long run our
children in the programs bond with each other will last throughout their lives. And
with everything that you guys do fund in the community.. sorry.
.

.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It’s okay. Take it easy.
MS. DeVERA-IGARTA: You know like the support they have in the community because of
the funding that you guys do. With everything that the office workers at Head Start
help with my family just talking with us so we have better outlook and being on the
council creates a safe environment where I’m finally able to share things that I never
could. So I want to thank you guys for all your funding for everybody.. skate parks
and our kids because they will become maybe a councilmember and, you know, and
continue
.

--

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. DeVERA-IGARTA: --be in our community. So thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...
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COUNCILMEMBER 3AISA: Our next testifier.

.

go ahead.

.

MS. CARDOSO: Okay. Good evening, Council, my name is Gretchen Cardoso. I’m testifying
on behalf of Upcountry Skateboard Alliance and that is an informal group.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Gretchen, are you.

.

.

oh, you got it. Okay. I’m sorry.

MS. CARDOSO: Okay. That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I passed over the paper and I didn’t see t.
MS. CARDOSO: No problem. We’re an informal group of skateboarders Upcountry and we
have a Facebook page and I’m a volunteer and we help update all of our members. I
want to show off the pians that the Council has approved funds for. We want to thank
you for these. They are professionally done and our input was sought in two different
meetings. Anyway, everybody is really excited about this. So thank you for investing
in professional plans, choosing a site, all of that. We do ask for full funding of the
park because with partial funding we’ll basically just have to put it off another year.
We can’t build half of a park. I’m a mom and I skate with my two young boys. We
skate together. I didn’t learn until I was in my mid-30s. But together as a family we
skate. We enjoy the other parks that the County has invested in already but I believe
in my heart that the best park is saved for last and that’s going to be Upcountry. It’s a
really nice park and we’re going to take good care of it as community members and
treat it with pride. Organized sports are awesome but I’m one of the home schooling
families that cannot participate in organized sports in the school system so
skateboarding is really important for home school and alternative families. We make
memories together. Skateboarding is constructive and I look forward to a bright
future. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Brendan Stevens.
And I’d also like to introduce all of you because you hadn’t had a chance to meet him
earlier David Raatz is head of our Council Services and he’s joined us. Good ahead,
Brendan, and he’ll be followed by Christopher.
not sure, Fishkin?
—

.

MR. STEVENS: Aloha, all. My name is Brendan Stevens. I’m a 17-year Upcountry resident
and homeowner. A 49-year old that has been skateboarding for 41 years, I’m here to
testify in support for the funding for the new Pukalani skateboard park right down the
street. As far as I’ve heard, the zoning has already been designated, the plans have
been drawn up, close to being fmalized, the last hurdle is the fmancing. I feel like this
park will be a great addition to the community offering a safe place for people of all
ages to be physically active, train and compete in order to gain skills and coordination
that will help them throughout their lives. There are many local residents that would
love to have a nearby area in Pukalani that they can go skateboarding that are safe

-33

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2016
Upcountry District (Pukalani-Kula-Ulupalakua)

and out of the streets which we all know can be very dangerous. Also, it will help keep
kids from trying to skateboard in unauthorized areas like right out front of the County
building here. County money has been spent in anti-skateboarding curb devices in
order to keep kids from riding their skateboards here. So please consider a generous
amount of the budget in order to see this dream through to reality. I am looking
forward to riding this new park at age 50 and well into the future. Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Next testifier is Christopher and he’ll be
followed by Gitan Lewis.
MR. FISHKIN: Aloha. I’m going to be more boring than all the others. What’s that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your name?
MR. fISHKIN: Christopher Fishkin.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MR. FISHKIN: You’re welcome. First, I’m here to address a seeming lack of integrity in
Mayor Alan Arakawa’s budget proposal. First about myself I’ve been a Maui County
resident for 20 years with 3 years in Honolulu. I have served the community as a
substitute teacher at King K, Kalama, lao Intermediate, and Maui Waena.
I’ve
managed two restaurants and have done outreach to youth at risk since 2005, and
presently serves as a legal assistant to an attorney in Maui who shares my passion for
justice and fairness. I’ve endeavored to support the integrity of our institutions which
means sometimes having to encourage those who serve the public to step up and do
the right thing. Mayor Alan Arakawa’s budget proposal is supposed to be a complete
financial plan pursuant to Article 9 of the Maui County Charter. Where are the
revenues listed that are owed by developer agreements to offset the capital
improvement projects listed in his budget? I don’t think the residents here today and
those who are not who are struggling financially want to pay for developer’s
obligations. One example, are the improvements on Phase 4 of South Kihei Road?
That’s’ one such example. Second, the budget relies on millions of dollars in STIP
funds. I believe approximately 200 million was acquired in 2016 for individual
projects and aggregate. Why does the approval, the approved STIP funding not
correspond with the Mayor’s current budget? For example, a $16 million project on
the STIP ledger Lower Honoapiilani Road that has been in the County budget for
almost 20 years is suddenly missing this year. It is interesting to note that this is the
same capital improvement project that is the subject of a pending lawsuit in which
both the Mayor and Keith Regan are named defendants. I do not believe that the
Mayor’s budget is a complete financial plan that in its present state can even possibly
be voted on as such. I also believe that it may violate laws pertaining to STIP funding.
And if Phase 4 of Lower Honoapillani Road has been removed, why? Thank you.
—
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Gitan Lewis and he’ll
be followed by Audrey Tamashiro-Kamii,
MR. LEWIS: Hi, good evening. My name is Gitan Lewis. I’m just standing here to tell you
that I love skateboarding a lot. I’ve been skateboarding for over 30 years. I’ve worked
at a lot of the parks that this island has had over the last 25 years. I’ve helped build
some of the parks. I’ve put a lot of my passion into skateboarding at the parks. It’s
just something that I’ve kind of built a lot of my life around. And I’m just really
excited about the chance that there might be an amazing skate park right here. from
the plans I’ve saw it’s going to be one of the best parks in the State. People are going
to be coming from every island to come here and it’s just an amazing thing to me.
Yeah, everyone is so eloquent today that I don’t really have a lot to add on that hasn’t
already been said. All these kids have really touched me with everything they’re
talking about. I don’t want to waste too much time just telling me how awesome I
think skateboarding is, But yeah, it’s important to me and I am really looking forward
to a new skate park here and it’s a great place to know where your kids are going to be
at all times, you know. I went to Baldwin, I graduated in ‘98, you could always find
me at the old Kahului Park my whole childhood. You know as a lot of other maybe not
so great of things I could have been doing but I was so passion about skateboarding
that that’s where I was, that’s where my friends were, and really looking forward to
coming here and hang out with all the little kids and helping them progress. Yeah,
like Tucker was saying earlier skateboarding just is incredible for self-esteem and selfdevelopment. You know, there’s nobody telling you what to do. There’s no coach so
everything has to come from within if you want to improve. So it’s taught me tons of
patience and perseverance in my life and I’m just really excited. So thank you very
much.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Gitan. Appreciate it.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Audrey Tamashiro-Kamii and she’ll be
followed by Teya Penniman.
MS. TAMASHIRO-KAMII: My name is Audrey Tamashiro-Kamii. I am the Program and Data
Assistant for Leeward Haleakala Watershed Restoration Partnership. Currently, our
field crew is all on the mountain. They are planting native seedlings and will not be
home until Friday. So on behalf of all of the staff, we’d like to extend a big mahalo for
the generous support that Maui County Department of Water Supply has extended not
just to our project but to all conservation agencies here in Maui Nui. The County
provides approximately 27 percent of our annual operating budget which we leveraged
with 34 percent in State and 39 in various Federal and private funding; however,
Federal and private funding vary greatly from year to year and, therefore, the stability
that the County and the State funding brings is crucial in continuing our basic
operations. We do try to keep as much of the funding received in State. We use Maui
contractors and wherever possible we purchase locally. We also try to engage and hire
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local talent. We have two restoration assistants and one intern that graduated from
Kamehameha Schools Maui campus so it’s really nice to see the guys on the mountain
giving back to the ama here at home. Leeward’s main goal is to restore dry land forest
on Haleakala from Makawao to Ulupalakua out to Kaupo between the elevations of
3,500 and 6,500 feet. Aside from our invasive species control and fence inspections, I
would like to share a few highlights of the past year that DWS has enabled us to do.
We assisted Haleakala National Park so far and DHHL with survey and permitting with
ungulate proof fence work in Nuu and DHHL Kahikinui areas. We installed the seed
farm at Kaalemaikani on Haleakala Ranch with Nick Dudley and ARC. We collected
seeds from 15 different species totaling over 4.7 million seeds. We installed 48 erosion
monitoring plots and gathered baseline data for future research. We also rebuilt our
volunteer program and the last trip that we just did although it was not a DWS
deliverable, we took people out to Kahikinui to collect seed that will be used to re
establish native species after the fire. For the next fiscal year, we will expand our outplanting of native species to rebuild watershed function on the south slope and to help
reduce runoff and increase water recharge potential. And with that, I’d just like to end
and say thank you so much for everything that you made possible this year, and we
humbly ask for your continued support in FY ‘17. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Teya Penniman and
shell be followed by Jessica Crouse,
MS. PENNIMAN: Aloha.
I’m Teya Penniman, Manager of the Maui Invasive Species
Committee and thank you for your long standing support for work on invasive species.
As you know, Maui County has made a significant commitment to working on Coqui
frogs in Maliko Gulch, and we’re very grateful for that commitment. That funding has
been encumbered and we are very much in the process of ramping up on that. There
is a problem, however, is that there is no dedicated funding for Coqui work in the FY
17 Budget. And I can understand why that might be and that we were only just
getting the funding and understanding that you would want to see results from the
significant commitment that has been made but what’s going to happen is we’re going
to have a gap. And that about May of next year is when we will no longer have
funding to support the staff that we’re currently in process of hiring because of the
way it works by the time we submit a grant in as soon as possible in July we probably
won’t get that funding until December so we’re going to have about six months where
we’re probably going to have to lay off the ten people that we’re in the process of
hiring, which will not be good for a variety of reasons. Not only will we be losing the
trained staff but will also lose the momentum that we will be making. So couple of
options I guess would be to add funding to the proposed budget or expect to see me
requesting a budget amendment. And I’d be happy to provide more details about what
that looks like or answer any questions. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.

-
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AUDIENCE:

.

.

.(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Donna Clayton.

Our next testifier is Jessica Crouse and shell be followed by

MS. CROUSE: Good evening. My name is Jessica Crouse and I’m here to speak in favor of or in
support of, excuse me, the Ka Ipu Kukui Leadership Fellows program, which was co-founded by
MEDB and it’s also a proposed line-item in the budget. I’m a member of the 2015-2016 Ka Ipu
Kukui cohort and I’ve found the experience over the past ten months to be extremely enriching
both professionally and personally. And the lessons that I’ve learned that have been reinforced
throughout this program will influence me in all of my actions for the rest of my life. I’m really
grateful to have had the opportunity to experience everything and I did grow up here. I was born
in Wailuku back in the day but this program exposes Maui County on such a different level than
most people ever get to experience and I hope that this program is continued, continues to
receive support and continues to be an opportunity to enlighten future leaders for this County.
Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Donna Clayton and
shell be followed by Justin Varaijay.
MS. CLAYTON: Hi. I’m Donna Clayton. I’m with Pukalani Community Association. But
before I start that I just want to thank you all for a very nice discussion yesterday on
the West Maui greenway, It’s my passion and I can’t stand up here without
mentioning it, and I thank you for thinking about it with us. I’m the President of
Pukalani Community Association. Good things are happening in Pukalani, We really
appreciate the sidewalks coming down from King K to Loha Street and we really
it’s exciting to us. The job is beautiful and we would like to request that you fmd the
funding as soon as possible to continue the sidewalks down and just connect our
community a little more, with more safety for our children. But we’re very excited
about that one in place now. We also are still working on the bus route. At our
August meeting, we are going to meet with the new bus director and we’re not happy
with that yet. We’re still having people go downtown. If they go to Makawao, they
have to go downtown before they can come back to Pukalani and that’s a very serious
question for our people. Our County park here at the Pukalani park we are so excited
about the skate park. We’re totally behind the idea of the skate park. We are excited
for all these young people but I guess 50-year old people
I’m not going to be
skating in the skate park but what I will do is go and watch. I think it’s cool. I think
it will entertain all of us that don’t want to do it. I mean, I just want, all I’m asking for
is more benches in the park because we put a request in for benches and the Parks
Department is working with us. They had promised us that they would think about it
and get back to us shortly. We also want timing lights for the tennis court because it
seems like a waste of money when they’re on all the time. I think a timing light might
save the County money. I’m not sure but we see them on and they just stay on. I also
.
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want to support the whole.. the Pukalani Community Association wants to support
invasive species control. We are very concerned about that. The whole island is
probably very concerned about that, and it isn’t just the Coqui frog I’m still very
worried about those fire ants and I don’t know if they’ll get up to Pukalani but they
might and I don’t want them. Thank you very much for being here.
.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you so much. Our next testifier is Justin Varaijay
followed by David Pickett. If I messed up your name, I’m sorry.
MR. VARAUJAY: Oh, no, you did a good job. Hi, Committee. I’m Justin Varaijay. I’m here
to justify on
well, basically first to thank you after being here all night listening to
all the various people that have come up and spoken. I’m really grateful that’s there’s
a committee like yourselves that can allocate the funds to these various programs.
But I’m here to talk about a creation of a bike park Upcountry. I was the builder and
one of the main employees at the Bike Park Maui, which is just down the road on
Baldwin. It is an amazing experience and as a trail builder I’ve seen bike parks go in
various urban areas across the country, and this one just blew me away with the
amount of community involvement, the amount of families, and kids that I saw come
up there, the relationships that I was able to develop. And when I saw, you know,
across all of the, um, every member that came. So, obviously, this is in its very
infancy but I’m just bringing about that I think that Upcountry would really benefit
from a community-based bike park and skate parks as well. Bike parks, in general,
are very similar to skate parks in that it’s a free flowing and there isn’t a certain way
that they’re made. It’s kind of an artful way. And as a builder, I kind of look at it and
I get to build things that I basically try to imagine what I would want to ride as a kid
so it’s kind of this whole, you know, well, that’s hard to describe but it’s really an
awesome opportunity and it’s a great asset to the community. Really brings people
together. So, I like to support that. And then support any other green transport of
people across the island. The greenway is also something that I’m in support of too.
So, thank you.
.

AUDIENCE:

.

..

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
David will be followed by Benjamin Joaquin.

Our next testifier is David Pickett and

MR. PICKETT: Hello. I’m David Pickett. I’m a software engineer and owner of a consulting
business named Pickett Enterprises LLC, and I live in Kula. I’m here to support
MEDB. MEDB has had significant positive impact on my professional and personal
life. In my personal life JumpStart Maui educated my parents on electric cars. They
helped them buy a Leaf and combined with their solar panels on their house down in
Kihei their house and cars all solar run now. It’s amazing. On the professional side,
I’ve gotten great support from MEDB with starting technology businesses here on
Maui. And the connections that I’ve gotten their events have directly resulted in work
-
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contracts for my company and for companies that my friends run also. For example,
some examples they organize an accounting class. They taught me how to restructure
my business that was a sole proprietorship into an LLC, introduced me to a great
accounting firm. They hosted a Venture Capital class where some great teachers came
over from Oahu and I had an opportunity to pitch to real investors, get feedback, and
actually eventually got connected to the Purple Maia program and now in some of my
hours in the week I teach students at Hui Malama. One of my students tonight know
I testified about that wonderful program. MEDB’s start up weekend event was
amazing as well about a year ago. Taught me how to take a brand new idea to a
business plan with a working software proto-type in just a weekend. My partners and
I have continued to pursue this business opportunity even a year later. And pretty
much just on that event my business partner is leaving a job as a CEO in Denver and
he is going to move to Maui to work on software startups here. So to summarize,
MEDB does great work for Maui. I want them to have plenty of funding so they can
put on more programs for the Maui business technology and education community.
And just if I have a little time left, I also want to express support for Hui Malama. It’s
been a wonderful opportunity working with that school. Noah talked about how in our
class we teach introductory programming through using real world tools to build video
games. They’re great kids, they have great support there and they really need it since
most of the kids have had to leave the Department of Education for various reasons.
Thank you. Have a good night.

AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Benjamin, are you here? I think he may
have left. We have Evan Strong and he’ll be followed by Vin Conti.
MR. STRONG: Good evening, Councilmembers. I am Evan Strong, Haiku resident, and I am
a U.S. Paralympic snow boarder. From a very young age I’ve been attending the skate
parks here on Maui in Wailuku. It was a very long commute since I lived way out in
Haiku near Huelo. I went to Hui Malama in Pala and I got to be a part of that growth
and development from a wooden small ramp in the driveway to a big concrete park
that is beautiful down by the ocean there. And it was an extremely.
I believe skate
parks are a very powerful and community building environment. It’s a free place for
anybody and everybody to come and use their imaginations and kind of as peers get to
learn together. Skateboarding I have been able to learn some of the greatest life skills
and characteristics and I know that for the community of Upcountry there’s a lot of.
most kids, by the way, have skateboards. Like this reaches a lot of people. There’s
people way up in Kula that couldn’t make it down to say Walluku or Paia on a regular
basis. So I know how productive those environments were for me to staying out of
trouble, having a focused place for me to channel my energy and my focus. Is that a
skater out there on the curb out there?
.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That’s a skater who’s watching you how you talk.
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MR. STRONG: By the way, it was really weird growing up as a skater as my natural
expression of where I wanted to go but there was always this criminal aspect that was
always put on top of me of skateboarding in places that wasn’t legal. And skateboards
are a way of transportation not just from learning tricks and expression of your
imagination but it’s still illegal to use it as transportation. I’ve been hassled by cops
from the age 8 growing up. So having a legal place for it would be a really productive
thing. At the age of 17, I was a part of a bad auto accident that I almost lost my life
but luckily it was just my leg. And this community of skateboarders, this fellowship of
skateboarders they lifted me up, they came together and did a big
—

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes and 45 seconds.
MR. STRONG: --fundralser in Paia. And because of this community I was able to get back to
life, become active and win a gold medal in Sochi, Russia through snowboarding. And
these are the kind of attributes that skate parks
--

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MR. STRONG: --foster in individuals and I look forward to being able to go to this skate park
and bring my little daughter that’s one and a half and she’s already climbing onto my
skateboard in the living room and I hope to share this space with the community in
the future. Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Vin [sic]. Our next testifier is Lianne
Suzuki and Lianne will be followed by Christina Anderson. Did we miss Vin? Are you
Vin?
MR. CONTI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Go ahead. I’m sorry.
MR. CONTI: Hi. My name is Vin Conti.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It’s getting late. You can tell I’m getting mixed up.
MR. CONTI: Yeah. It’s okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Go ahead.
MR. CONTI: Well, I’ll try and be quick. I’m here to talk about MEDB for a second but I also
want to talk about something else that I think is related. I think we have an
opportunity right now to address some long standing issues of social injustice and
anthropogenic climate change. And I want to talk about all of those. So please let me
briefly introduce myself, it’s relevant. I graduated with masters in energy policy from
-
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Yale in 2008. I started an energy company after that. A year later I sold it. Six, seven
years ago I moved to Maui for the kiteboarding and the paragliding but I stayed for the
energy policy. A year and a half ago, I started my PhD at UH-Manoa in energy policy
specifically focusing on Maui. But this year I took a break from it because right now
we’re facing a once in a hundred life times really convergence of opportunities. This
moment right now is unprecedented in human history and I wanted to be a part of it,
and I wanted to talk to you guys about it. As I’m sure you all know, Maui is very far
ahead of the rest of the world in terms of integrating environmentally benevolent
power generation mostly solar and wind.
Because of our isolations and social
considerations Maui very much resembles the global, the future of global energy
sector. We’ll be first in the world to figure out how to eliminate the use of fossil fuels.
But our world is more interconnected now and saving our ama and our land is going
to require more than just fixing our energy supply. Energy storage, bio-fuels, wind
farms, these all exist at the intersection of agriculture and energy. We need to look at
how we produce our food and how we capitalize on our social assets, our people. This
is a convergence of opportunities I spoke of. With the opportunity to fundamentally
reassess our relationship with the power company as in the proposed NextEra merger
coming at the very same time and because of having to so fundamentally reassess how
we distribute and produce our power all coming at the exact same time as an
opportunity to really re-evaluate how we use our land here as the sugar production
ends. This is a really mind boggling time. The opportunities and the challenges are
staggering and the outcomes of what you all do right now in Maui will have dramatic,
global impacts. I recently had the good fortune to attend the Maui Energy Conference
on one of the few available scholarship slots. I was lucky to do so. MEDB has put
together a world-class conference and I would hope that you would continue to
support them. Perhaps additional funds could be made available so that more of the
community could attend. I think it would really help out. But beyond this, I implore
you to take this moment very seriously
--

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MR. CONTI: --and with great urgency never again and nowhere else will this convergence of
opportunities exist. So I implore you to well fund the study that comprehensively
incorporates social considerations, energy need considerations, and agricultural
needs. MEDB has done a great job. Maybe they would be a good agency to spearhead
it. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause),..

COUNCILMEM3ER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Lianne Suzuki and
again she’ll be followed by Christina Anderson.
MS. SUZUKI: Hi, good evening. My name is Lianne Suzuki and I’m here in support of the
National Kidney Foundation. As you know, the kidney disease is affecting more than
half of the residents in Maui County. A lot of people don’t realize that they have
kidney disease and by the time they find out it’s pretty bad and there’s not much you
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can do except see your doctor, take medicine, and eventually you’ll probably end up
on dialysis. I’m sure a lot of you here must know someone who has kidney disease or
is sadly on dialysis. I volunteer along with the Kidney Foundation and the organ
transplant group here on Maui because I have a personal interest in this matter. I am
a kidney recipient who was diagnosed at age 23. I had a kidney transplant 18 years
ago and there is a chance that I may have kidney disease again. And I don’t want
anybody to go through something like this because it’s sad, It’s sad to see your friend
or your loved one go through hard ache. You get swollen, you get high blood pressure.
You kind of see their depression set in. I had all of those symptoms. I was at a point
ready to give up but you know you kind of think you want to keep strong for your
family and friends, and which I did. And I’m happy I did because I’m here today to
testify to try and help others through a support group and through the Kidney
Foundation so they don’t have to go through this. Thank you for your support.
AUDIENCE: ...(applause)...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Christina Anderson
and she’ll be followed by Phyllis Robinson.
MS. ANDERSON: Aloha, good evening, Committee Chair and Committee Members. Thank
you so much for your time tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hang on, Christina. We’re having a hard time hearing you.
MS. ANDERSON: Short people. My name is Christina Anderson and I’m a Clinical Director
at Maui Youth & Family Services. I’m here to ask tonight for continued support for
our adolescence substance abuse treatment services. We are the only intensive
outpatient program on Maui dealing with alcohol and drug problems with youth. We
provide individualize treatment after school that includes group therapy, individual
and family counseling. We also do activities and excursions that reflect Hawaiian
cultural values. We’re looking on Baldwin at the old Maunaolu Campus. We work
with kids from all the high schools and all the middle schools.
We provide
transportation after school for them to attend both to and from, which is very unique.
We serve more than a hundred teams each year, all come from different ethnicities
and over half of our kids are Hawaiian. Many of our clients come from single family
homes or have experienced some sort of trauma in their lives. The most common
issues we’re seeing are related to alcohol and marijuana during school, and they get
suspended and with the help of our services can get back into school. Many of our
teams come to us and we work with the schools to get them back in. We’ve recently
seen budget cuts and adolescent substance abuse is not going away. Funding is more
critical than ever because we need to break the vicious cycle of substance abuse in
Maui County so that our young ones do not grow up addicted to drugs and our
community can be safe. I’d like to share a quick quote with you from one of our
former clients. “Two years ago, I was homeless on drugs and committing crimes so I
could eat. I felt hopeless and lonely and everyday seem to get longer. My Maui Youth
& Family Service counselors made me feel like I mattered when no one else did. They
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gave me hope that there was something better and they gave me a place to heat I got
to participate in the treatment services. I work full-time now and no longer use drugs
to escape reality.” We need to help step up and make a difference in these young
people’s lives, and I appreciate your support. Thank you for your time too.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause).,.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you too. Question.
There’s a little question for you here. Member?

Would you please come back?

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. You mentioned funding cuts.
MS. ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: From what source?
MS. ANDERSON:
program.

Alcohol and drug abuse division cut our funding by $0 percent in that

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Was that the State?
MS. ANDERSON: Yes. State of Hawaii Department of Health.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
saying, well, what do you guys do?

We’re going to ask for more TAT and they keep

MS. ANDERSON: Uh...
COUNCILMEM3ER WHITE: And we have stepped in to fill the gap when they’ve cut services
from time-to-time so thank you very much.
MS. ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier is Phyllis Robinson and she’ll be
followed by Russell Reinertson. Good evening.
MS. ROBINSON: Good evening, esteemed Councilmembers. It’s getting late and I want to
say how much I’ve appreciated being able to listen to all the amazing testimony
tonight. I am the Vice-President of the Haleakala Chapter of the Hawaii Farmers
Union United. And I wanted to thank you here tonight for the County’s ongoing
support of our farm Apprentice Mentoring Program, our FAM Program. In November,
we graduated seven apprentices and I am very proud to say that all seven are now
actively farming on Maui. Yea.
And out of those five are actually working under a
Hawaii Department of Agriculture Specialty Crop grant. We got a $40,000 grant from
HDOA and they’re growing moringa as a specialty crop and we’re very happy to say
that these five apprentices are participating in the Food Innovation Center on the
.

.

-43

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2016
Upcountry District (Pukalani-Kula-Ulupalakua)

college campus and they’re learning how to create value added product with moringa.
And so they’re writing business plans and marketing plans and farm operation plans
with our wonderful mentors Mika Atay and James Simpliciano. So I want to just
thank you because we want to continue our farm apprentice mentoring program into
the next fiscal year. We want to start a new cohort in September and we are counting
on all of you for that ongoing support. So I just want to thank you all for letting me
testify.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
and he’ll be followed by Ann Rillero.

Our next testifier is Russell Reinertson

MR. REINERTSON: Hi, good evening. My name is Russell Reinertson. I’m an Upcountry
resident here in Pukalani. When I’m not working two jobs six days a week and being
an active father to my very active and inquisitive five-year old, I volunteer quite a bit
with Maui Mountain Bike Coalition, the Maui Bicycling League, and I also serve with
Na Alahele Advisory Council part of the DLNR. I’m here to testify today and ask you
guys to really fully support the Mayor’s funding request for the West Maui Greenway.
I think the community all around the island, Upcountry, West Maui, South Maui,
everybody wants to see this greenway come through come to completion. The grand
vision is a 25-mile path going from Ukumehame all the way to Lipoa Point but the
Mayor is asking for funding for the first phase about five miles from Olowalu to
Lahaina. And this is a great opportunity. It’s a multi-use path for hiking, bicyclists,
equestrians, and it will help ease some of the transportation issues on the West side.
Every time there’s an accident they’re going to shut the road and there’s a possibility
that the West Maui greenway could be utilized to shift traffic around at choke points.
It’s just a great resource all around for the whole community. Also, I just want to say
Upcountry residents skate parks, yeah. Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Our next testifier is Anne Rillero followed by Stacey
Moniz. Good evening.
MS. RILLERO: Good evening. My name is Anne Rillero; I live in Kula and I’m here to speak
on behalf of funding and staffing and maintenance of our public pools. The pools
allow people of all ages to get essential exercise that’s not impact from and a full body
work out. And our County pools are really well used during the day but you might not
know that they’re really used very well after they close at 4:30 p.m. If you were here
earlier today between 4:30 and 6, you would see about 50 kids with the Maui Dolphins
Swim Club practicing. Each year this program helps 150 to 200 kids learn to swim,
improve their swim skills and also get lots of great exercise. It’s run by the nonprofit
Maui Dolphin Swim Club and it does not require any lifeguard or County staffing. So
it doesn’t cost the County anything, and that’s just right here at this pool that we’re
serving all these kids at this pool and this is repeated at other pools around Maui
-
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County. But wait, there’s more. From 6 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. on Mondays through
Thursdays, you’ll find the Maui Masters swimming at the pooi. I’m one of them and
Masters, by the way, means that we’re over 18. Doesn’t talk necessarily talk about
swim proficiency. Although half of our group, and I won’t tell you which half, are
seniors. There are also Master programs at the pooi in the early hours of weekday and
Saturday mornings before the pools are open. Many people who are working full-time
here on Maui, myself included can’t get to the pools during the day. And for them, the
nonprofit Maui Masters Swim program makes it possible to swim and exercise when
the pools are closed. And this program again is not staffed by lifeguards or any
County staff. It costs the County nothing to provide this recreation. The members of
Maui Masters Swim Club also assist the lifeguards. You’ll see that there are covers on
the pool at night to help keep the heat in, and the Maui Masters group puts the covers
on after swim practice. And in the morning, we take the covers off. So that’s staff
time that’s not needed by the lifeguards. And we also keep a presence at the pool.
We’re there until around 8 o’clock and so we’re helping to prevent vandalism at the
pools. Both of these programs, you know, Maui Masters and Maui Dolphins are very
affordable and it allows more kids and more adults to participate. So I just ask that
through this County budget process
-—

MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. RILLERO: --okay, that it continues to support our pools and to avoid steps that would
change the funding of the Aquatics Department [sic] and reduce the sufficiency and
ability to take care of the pools. And one last quick little plug. Yesterday, I testified
for the West Maui greenway and I just wanted to thank you all again for all the time
and thought that you’ve put into that and support and I just wanted to strongly
reiterate my support and gratitude. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Stacey Moniz and she’ll be followed by Rick
Woodford.
MS. MONIZ: Hi, good evening, everyone. Thank you, again, for being here. I know it’s
getting late so I will be brief. I’m Stacey Moniz. I’m the Executive Director at Women
Helping Women and I wanted to say, thank you again, for your long standing support
of our domestic violence shelter and programs for victims of domestic violence. And
we are in the Mayor’s budget again as a line item and it’s to include all of our core
services especially in our outlying areas. So we have a program on Lanai. We have a
program that we just started last year in Hana, and also in West Maui and this is to
continue that funding to provide access to restraining orders, advocacy, safety
planning, shelter, help with rental assistance, all of our programs. So we do get a bit
of, a lot of support from the County and we’re really grateful for that. So I’d ask you to
continue that funding. I also wanted to share an exciting piece of information that I
-
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just shared with Member Hokama about a shelter that we’re hoping to open on Lanai
this year. We wrote a grant-in-aid to the State of Hawaii and they are considering that
and I wanted to share that with you again today. That’s one of the most exciting news.
Lanai is the last island in our State that does not have a shelter. So we are on the
verge of making that happen. I’m very excited about that. And again, thank you so
much for our support of our agency and the important work that we do. Mahalo.

AUDIENCE:

...

(applause),..

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. That’s good news. Rick Woodford is our
next testifier and hell be followed by Tiffany Medeiros.
MR. WOOLFORD: Good evening, and thank you for being here so late. I’ve been on Maui for
about 40 years and a lot of you I’ve worn a lot of different hats. One of the most
rewarding hats I’m wearing right now is a volunteer mediator for Maui Mediation
Services. We get our funding through the State Judiciary and through Maui County.
I want to thank you very much. Mahalo for your support, and I’m asking for
continuing support. As my three years as being a volunteer mediator, I’ve watched
numerous, hundreds of people come through with satisfactory resolution of their
conflicts. And conflicts can come from anywhere
landlord, tenant or homeowners
or business-to-business, all different kinds of things. And without going to court and
spending the courts time, getting judges to do anything, we’re able to come in and sit
down with a couple of mediators and actually resolve their own problems and it’s just
so rewarding to watch it happen. Lately, we’re getting almost inundated with domestic
mediations. So some of our mediations we get about a 40-volunteer mediator core and
some of our mediators have been trained especially trained now to handle domestic
mediations, and it always involves, seems to always involve young families that are
being separated with young children and they just don’t know how to figure out the
parenting plan and the visitations and who’s going to do what. And it’s really critical
to be able to help them and it’s so rewarding to watch it work, you know. So I’m just
here again to please continue your support for Maui Mediation Services. I think it’s a
really important thing that we’re doing for the community. Thank you.
.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Rick. And our next testifier is Tiffany
Medeiros. Is Tiffany here? I don’t see Tiffany. Andrea DeVera DeGarta? Not here.
John Dobovan and hell be followed by Pam Thmpap.
MR. DOBOVAN: Thank you. I’m John Dobovan. I’m the President of Kula Haven Farms.
We are an aquaponics operation up at Keokea. We’re selling watercress and rainbow
trout. I’m here to testify, talk a little bit about food security and farming. You know,
many of us share this concern about our food supply being very precarious. It’s also a
tremendous economic drain on the State. We’re currently spending about three billion
dollars a year to import food to Hawaii. And one really good easy way to resolve this is
to grow more farmers, particularly young farmers. I look around my peers most of
-
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them are old guys like me. We need young farmers. I think that the FAM program of
the Hawaii Farmers Union United, the farm apprenticeship program is an excellent
program. I thank you for your support of that program but we need more things than
that. Capital is a very essential thing for especially for starting farmers. Now there
are a lot of great resources for current farmers, established fanners but for a young
guys starting out access to capital is very difficult. It’s hard to get a bank loan and all
you have is a dream. Also, we need better water supply for agriculture. It doesn’t
make a lot of sense to put very expensive, chemically treated residential water on an
agricultural crop. In my case, I had to very carefully add precise amounts of sodium
bisulfite to my water so it doesn’t kill my fish. And then land is probably the biggest
issue. The new proposed Kula Ag Park I think is an excellent idea but it’s really
important that the farmers be allowed to live on their land. Farming is not a
commuter job. You know it’s 24/7. If one my pumps go out in the middle of the
night, I gotta get up and fix it, if not my whole system is going down and Vll use a lot
of money. And of course, ag theft is a silly problem as well. So I urge you to support
these issues. Anything you can do, and there’s some very important things you can
do here, will help keep some of that three billion dollars a year in Hawaii community.
Thank you very much for your time.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Pamela Tumpap and
she’ll be followed by Tiare Lawrence. Good evening.
MS. TUMPAP: Good evening. Well, first, I just wanted to thank all of you for being here and
for coming out to each community. And I wanted to thank you for the work that
you’re doing to get more of our fair share of the transient accommodations tax, and
particularly to Chair White and Councilmember Gladys Balsa who were in Honolulu
late the other night fighting to the end trying to get more of that money here to benefit
our County budget.
I’m here testifying as President of the Maui Chamber of
Commerce, and I also want to talk about the County’s bond ratings and the great work
that the County is doing so that we have such great bond ratings and can borrow at
low rates because again that helps us save money and keep money in the budget. We
appreciate the plan for increased capital spending because we know that we got a lot
of apparent maintenance to do and some aging infrastructure. We want to support
the Office of Economic Development’s funding proposal, particularly, as you know, we
had last year was the second year of the Made in Maui County Festival. There’s $100
thousand dollars in this year’s request for that. That’s generating over 10,000 people
who come to that festival. But more importantly, it’s helping as we talk about
agriculture and diversified agriculture. We’re bringing in a lot of people who are doing
local manufacturing and there’s a lot of new programs where the County has made an
investment like the University of Hawaii-Maui College where we’ve got a food
technology program as well. So as we’re looking at ag and we’re looking at new
products, we need a way to get those products out there so they can be sold and have
great exposure by connecting them with buyers, wholesalers, and distributors and
that’s what the festival does. The Maui Chamber of Commerce, of course, also wants
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to support the visitor industry request and support many of the industry requests and
the Office of Economic Development’s proposal because we need to keep our economy
healthy and strong as we go through this major transition. We always appreciate the.
we’re looking at some balance. Sometimes when we look at real property tax fees
maybe the business community takes a bigger hit than the overall public. But this
year as we saw the weight fees proposed, we see sort of an equal head. Everybody is
paying a little bit more and we appreciate that sentiment. Last year and unfortunately
there was a woman who was going to testify tonight and she was very upset and it
looks like she left. But last year in this budget process at the eleventh hour the CORE
(Commercial Ocean Recreational Operators) had a huge hit to their permitting fees,
and we hope not to see that again. These are small businesses that have invested
many years to build their businesses and they’re doing a great job protecting our
oceans, and we hope that we don’t see increases in their fees again this year but I
notice that she’s left and I think it’s a huge strain as they’ve heard some comments
made in Council committee meetings that lead them to think maybe that would
happen again. So we want to make sure that our businesses are protected as we move
forward because right now all jobs are needed.
MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MS. TUMPAP: We really want to appreciate the Council’s efforts to pare down our unfunded
liabilities debt. We want to see the affordable housing fund used. We’re still are
worried about invasive species and now we have a very unique opportunity to do a
new greenway with the West Maui greenway.
MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MS. TUMPAP: And I want to support that because this is an opportunity where we simply
just need to upgrade something that already exist and create a new recreational open
area place for our residents.
And real quickly, as a member of the Pukalani
Community Center, we defmitely want to support the skate park. We thank you for
the additional help on the sidewalks and we do have some trouble with the bus routes.
So we ask that that be addressed with where they’re parking and the traffic issues and
to please work with the Committee. Thank you. Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Tiare Lawrence, and Tiare will be followed by
Arianna Feinberg.
MS. LAWRENCE: Aloha ka kou, Councilmembers. Mahalo for coming up here tonight. I
just wanted to say big mahalo for putting the skate park in the budget and I please
urge you guys to support it. I’m a mom of two kids that were running around here
earlier and I’m really excited about that because I grew up in Lahaina. You know it’s
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not easy for us to get to the beach now but skate park would be a major bonus. And I
think it would be awesome for the seniors to come and watch too. Also I was stoked
that you guys or that the
a playground was added to the budget for next year.
Please urge you guys to support that too because a lot of families play soccer and
football at Kula Park and that would be a major bonus as well. I live right by the
improvement here up above by King K to Pukalani Superette major bonus. I used to
be worried about the students basically walking on the highway so please extend it
because it’s just a lot safer for the kids. Also, in regards I’ve heard Councilmember
Balsa bring up gray water conversion. I’m a total supporter of that. I think a pilot
program. It’s not on the budget but maybe if some funds were allocated to look into it
there’s a lot of communities on the continent that are doing pretty well with it. And
also I’ve heard from a lot of farmers and ranchers that need and the want for another
reservoir Upcountry so if you could add that. And then also as a Ka Ipu Kukui
graduate in 2010 I was the second graduating class, please support it. It’s really,
really important for people like myself to have a place, a venue, a program where we
can go and learn more about what we can do to be better leaders in our community so
please support that. Also the Hawaii Farmers Union United Program I have friends
that graduated from that. They’re super stoked. They were given the tools and
resources to pursue farming, and as you know, we need a lot more young farmers.
And then also my last thing was Women Helping Women. That’s an awesome
program. I have friends that are dear to my heart that have utilized that program as
well. So, mahalo nui for coming.
.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

.

..

(applause),..

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Our next testifier is Arianna Feinberg and she’ll be followed by
Gerry Ross. Good evening.
MS. FEINBERG: Hi. I’m Arianna Feinberg. I’m a Pukalani resident and small business
owner. I’m here to encourage you to continue to support Ka Ipu Kukui. I graduated
from that program last year and it immensely enhanced my life. After growing up
here, going to the mainland and coming back and starting my adult life and wanting
to engage and just sort of being lost, it was really nice to be able to come together,
meet a group of other young leaders that had the similar interest, very diverse
backgrounds and be able to learn about the, you know, the very interesting history
and issues that are affecting our island. I think that was extremely valuable that we
were exposed to so many different viewpoints and different people that have different
point of views and I think that it’s really important right now because there are a lot of
contention on our island and I think that’s important for current and future leaders to
come together and learn to have some empathy for each other. And just because you
disagree with someone it doesn’t mean that they’re evil but that we can learn to push
forward together. I mean, Ka Ipu Kukui really helped me and fellow leaders with that.
I think it’s really important especially now. I’d also like to encourage you to help out
MISC and make sure that they don’t have that six-month gap in the Coqui frog
-
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program but I have a lot of friends that actually have jobs and through that and that
will be really horrible if they lost their jobs and then also all their efforts that they’re
going through if those, you know, it would be worthless if there’s that gap. And then
also I’m terrified of little fire ants so please give more money to fighting little fire ants.
That would be really terrible. I would also like to encourage you to use money from
the Open Space Fund to buy land out in Hamakua. It’s 85 acres that is for sale so
please do fund that. That would be amazing. Also, in general, I know that there are a
lot of funding through the Department of Water Supply that goes through the different
watershed partnerships, I think that it is essential that we give them as much money
as they need and if not more because not only does that give us lasting water, it
prevents erosion, and it also creates jobs. I love when I hear about my friends coming
back and working and doing something that is enriching in so many different ways.
So thank you guys so much for your continued support and the future that we’ll have
together. Thank you.
AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Gerry
Ross and he’ll be followed by Patrick Doster. Good evening.
MR. ROSS: Good evening. Aloha, Counciors for hanging in there. My name is Gerry Ross.
My wife and I run and operate Kupaa farms just down the road here in Kula. We
basically grow soil and then harvest whatever comes out it to feed people. We’re also
an educational resource so we’ve have Hui Malama up at our farm teaching kids the
value of things like compost and the farm apprenticeship and mentoring program.
The first stop those kids make is my 15-hour sustainable agriculture class and they
do get the tools on how to use agriculture and growing food as a means of dealing with
the pending climate change. So it’s really exciting working with young people that
way. Thanks very much for supporting OED who then has also in support of different
agricultural organizations on the island that has trickled down to the Maui Coffee
Association of which I’m the Vice-President. We put on workshops, we try to train our
coffee growers on how to improve the coffee that they grow, and that’s resulted in the
highest aggregate score of any other coffee growing regions within the State, and we
really feel this has helped to improve both the quality plus the economic viability of
coffee as a resource here. One of the things I wanted to talk about briefly is that we
know we’re seeing a lot of changes in agriculture with the pending closure of HC&S,
and yet at the same time we really want to keep a lot of agriculture going here. We
want to rejuvenate it and keep it alive and going. And so my question to you is, why
wouldn’t it make sense to put together an agriculture department perhaps in the
Office of Economic Development staffed by a couple of people who could serve as
inspectors that could be able to sort out the problems of real farms versus fake farms,
who would actually serve as a resource for young farmers who are trying to get into
farming to say, well, these are the kinds of things you need to know about land bases
and State permitting and stuff like that. It would really make it a lot of easier for
people to get into farming cause that’s what we’re going to need. And also, one of my
favorite things that hopefully you’re not tired of hearing it that might be an
-
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opportunity that that department could be the champion for composting. We have
enough food waste on this island now to cover the island 9,000 acres a year one-inch
thick with compost. That does a lot of good things for our soil. For example, on our
farm we generate a lot of compost every year. This year it’s going to be close to 50
tons of food waste and equal amount of wood chips that we generate from on farm
trees. It helps with soil, water retention so I use less water, soil organic matters that’s
carbon dioxide and atmosphere going into the soil, reduces erosion rates, etc., etc. My
fertilizer cost are 1/30th because I use compost.
MS. BROOKS: Two minutes 45 seconds.
MR. ROSS: By the way, this results in award winning coffee and great food. So we have the
tools in front of us. Like we hear the Maui Film Festival used in the same phase with
cans and
--

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MR. ROSS:
and sundance and there’s no reason that Maui can’t be used in the
same phrase with NAPA, Bordeaux or any of the other food destinations in the world.
We can grow amazing food here and use that to
as a way of attracting even more
visitors to sustainable agriculture and good tasting food on Maui. And the last thing,
this is real quick Anaergia. I haven’t heard anything about this. You guys are our
eyes on Anaergia. We don’t want our resources going up in smoke literally. Thank
you.
--_____

.

.

.

-

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Patrick Doster
followed by Rich Doster, Are you here? I think they may have left, And we also have
Larry Feinberg, and Larry will be followed by Yuki Lei Sugimura. Good evening, Larry.
MR. FEINBERG: Thank you very much. I thought I was last. Once again I’m here because
my daughter made me come.
(LA UGHTER)
MR. fEINBERG: But it’s great to see you guys Upcountry. I want to thank Gladys for the
pupus. Not even running for anything and she did that. To reiterate what was
already said MISC is very, very important. We don’t want a gap there. Coqui frogs,
the fire ants, all the terrible things that other people have brought here to make Maui
less desirable and we want it to be more desirable. We cannot let that fall through the
cracks at all. The other thing is Ka Ipu Kukui- it’s growing young people to take your
places in the future, and that’s what we need
smart, intelligent, local people to
make Maui a better place. But I’m really here for, my big thing is the dump. I know
that they put it in all the time. I’ve spoken to many of you on personal basis and they
point to the Mayor. Well, the Mayor doesn’t have this and the Mayor says it’s the
.
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Council and it goes back and forth. I saw somewhere that they’re going to raise fees to
keep the dump open on Sunday, and it’s just very, very important that you don’t let
that fall through the cracks. And I want to thank you once again for coming up here
and it’s been late and there’s a lot of wonderful people that came up and did a lot of
things. Thank you very much, and again, thank you for coming Upcountry. Aloha.

AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause).

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Our next testifier is Yuki Lei Sugimura
and I will call those that didn’t come up after Yuki Lei is pau. Thank you.
MS. SUGIMURA: Aloha, everyone. I’m Yuki Lei Sugimura; so nice to see all of you here
Upcountry. I’m here actually to ask you to continue your support for the Makawao
parade in Fiscal Year 2017. But before I do that, I just want to say that I’ve been out
in the community and I’ve been hearing a lot about the need for affordable rentals,
affordable market homes, about the homeless, water development and transmission,
food security, I love hearing about aquaponics. I love hearing about what Arianna said
and now I can actually say to Larry, you’re Arianna’s father and Arianna has done a
great job in terms of her leadership skills in the community. The Makawao parade is
an important item that is funded through the Office of Economic Development. It
provides small town and business development. As you know, many of you have
participated in the parade and you see all the hundreds or thousands, I hope, of
people who watch the parade that provides economic development for merchants, And
I think that your dollar from what I seeing is really multiplied because not only do the
participants attend the parade, they also support the rodeo which happens on the
same weekend. So I would like to ask you for your continued support and thank you
for doing a great job for Maui nui. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.

AUDIENCE:

..

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We have some folks that signed up that didn’t respond. Ill try
one more time. Benjamin Joaquin? Andrea DeVera Igarta? Tiffany Medeiros? Patrick
Doster? And Rich Doster? Is there anyone else who wants to testify that hasn’t
signed up? Mr. Watanabe. Well give you that opportunity.
MR. WATANABE: Good evening, Councilmembers, Chair Riki Hokama, and Vice-Chair Mike
White and Members of the finance Committee [sic]. I’m Warren Watanabe, Executive
Director of the Maui County Farm Bureau. And, actually, our President was supposed
to have come and testified but he suddenly became ill. We want to thank you for your
continued support of our programs and our line-item in the Mayor’s budget.
Basically, we are continuing our programs our Grown on Maui program. We just
completed our Ag Fest on April 2nd, again another success week thanks to a lot of
funding from the County. It is part of our program to kind of be more self-sufficient.
Also on Grown on Maui we are partners with the Hawaii Food and Wine Festival. As
-

-

52

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 13, 2016
Upcountry District fPukalani-Kula-Ulupalakua)

you know, they have expanded to Maui and the Big Island Maui for the last couple of
years. And it’s an important, I think, event. And it brings Hawaii on the world stage.
Chef Roy and Chef Allen brings in many chefs, up to 80 chefs from around the world
to tour our islands. We also continue our program to work with our local chefs, our
restaurants, and retailers to promote the Grown on Maui brand. In our educational
area we are continuing our ag in the classroom program. We just completed our
program for this year. We did 12 schools 9 public and 3 private. This is targeted
towards the second graders. We culminate it with a field day at Haleakala Ranch with
705 students over two days plus some teachers and their parents. We had six activity
stations but with our five partners covering topics such as canoe crops, food nutrition,
animal herding with working dogs presented by Haleakala Ranch, importance of
watershed management, and also vegetative production and parts of a plant. As you
know, our grant also covers three other commodity groups
the Maui Coffee
Association, the Maui Association of Landscape Professionals, and the Maui
Cattlemen’s Association. This year’s Mayor’s proposal does include a slight increase
and we would like to ask for your support of that. As you know, FDA did pass the
final FSMA rule, which will affect our farmers. So we intend to use some of that
funding to get our farmers in compliance. We don’t want our farmers to find
loopholes. We want them to be compliant as food safety is important for all of us.
And again, so I ask for your continued support. Thank you.
-

-

-

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE:

.

.

.

(applause)...

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Anyone else? Mr. Chair, I think we’re done.
£ND OF PUBLIC TESTIMOZ4JY..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Balsa,
This meeting is adjourned.
(gavel)...
...

ADJOURN:

9:00p.m.
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Budget and Finance Committee
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